
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                           

MEETING AGENDA 

PLAN COMMISSION 
Wednesday, March 8, 2017 

7:30 P.M. 
MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 

(Tentative & Subject to Change) 

 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
1. MINUTES - Minutes of January 19, 2017, (Special Meeting); and February 8, 2017 

 
2. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 a)  Case A-40-2016 – 722-724 N. York Rd. – Hinsdale Animal Hospital – Text 
Amendment for Pet Hospital, Boarding Kennels and Grooming Services in the 
B-1 Community Business District as a Special Use Permit and Concurrent 
Special Use Permit Application. 

b)  Case A-30-2016 – 210 E. Ogden Ave. – Shell (gas station) – Design Review 
Permit Application to add additional color to North and West facing Canopies. A 
sign permit application is also included to replace 2 existing canopy signs with 
Code compliant (and remove 2 existing canopy signs permanently). 

c)  Case A-37-2016 – 120 N. Oak St. – AMITA Health – Major Adjustment to 
Planned Development for Signage Replacement to 16 Existing Signs (Adventist 
to AMITA) *continued from January 11, 2017, PC meeting*. 

 
3.  PUBLIC HEARING – All those wishing to provide public testimony must be sworn in 

and after the applicant makes their presentation will be recognized by the Chair 
to speak. 

a) Case A-38-2016 – 525-527 W. Ogden Ave. – Kensington School – Text 
Amendment and Special Use Permit for Child Daycare not operated by/for a 
Membership Organization and concurrent Exterior Appearance/Site Plan 
Application. *Continuation from January 11, 2017, Plan Commission meeting* 

b) Case A-26-2016 – 21 W. Second St. – TinkRworks, LLC – Text Amendment to 
Section 6-106(B)(7) to include Tutoring and Concurrent Special Use Permit 
Application to allow tutoring educational services in the O-2 Limited Office 
District. 

c) Case A-33-2016 – 534 Chestnut St. – Christine Stec – Text Amendment to 
Section 6-106(B)(7) to include Tutoring and Concurrent Special Use Permit 
Application to allow tutoring educational services in the O-2 Limited Office 
District. 

 
4.    EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN REVIEW 
      a) Case A-01-2017 – 17 W. Maple St. – Unitarian Church of Hinsdale – Exterior 

Appearance and Site Plan for new Windows and roof solar panels on the 
Unitarian Church of Hinsdale Religious Education Building. 
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5.     SIGN PERMIT REVIEW  
        a) Case A-02-2017 – 29 E. First St. – Levato Salon – 1 Canopy Sign in Historic 

Downtown District 
        b) Case A-03-2017 – 20 E. Maple St. – Hinsdale Public Library – 1 New Ground 

Sign at Local Landmark (attached to Memorial Hall)  
 

6.   ADJOURNMENT 
 

The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who 
require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in 
this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the 
facilities, are requested to contact Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or 
by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons. 

Web Site:  www.villageofhinsdale.org 

http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/


 

       MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

PLAN COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING- JANUARY 19, 2017 

MEMORIAL HALL 

7:30 P.M. 

 

Chairman Cashman called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m., Wednesday, January 19, 2017, in 

Memorial Hall, the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois.   

 

PRESENT: Chairman Cashman (recused himself), Commissioner Ryan, Commissioner 

Peterson, Commissioner Fiascone, Commissioner Krillenberger, 

Commissioner Willobee, Commissioner Crnovich (acting chair) and 

Commissioner McMahon.   

 

ABSENT: Commissioner Unell  

 

ALSO PRESENT: Chan Yu, Village Planner, Applicant Representatives for Case: A-41-

2016-100 S. Garfield Ave.  (HMS)- Community Consolidated School 

District 181 – Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review for a New 

Hinsdale Middle School.   

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Review 

100 S. Garfield Ave. – Site Plan/Exterior Appearance Approval for a new Hinsdale 

Middle School. 

 

Acting Chair, Julie Crnovich, summarized the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan application 

and asked the applicant to please present the request. John Helfrich, project engineer, Don 

White, on behalf of District 181 and Brian Kronewitter, project architect reviewed a power 

point presentation.   

 

Major features of the exterior of the building were discussed from the pedestrian vantage 

point.  A bird’s eye perspective of the building was shared addressing the roof screens to hide 

mechanical equipment, an existing Third Street drop off area that will remain, court yard and 

green space.  A site logistics plan for construction was presented addressing temporary 

parking, mobile classroom re-location, and removal of the existing school building and 

restoration of the site and construction of the new surface parking lot.   

 

Rob Schneider, a resident who lives across from the middle school at 20 E. Third Street, asked 

if the bus lane could be moved to Washington Street with closures of the street for part of the 

day.  John Helfrich, project engineer, addressed the concern by pointing out the village 

parking spaces in that area would not be accessible during closure times.  Mr. Helfrich 

continued to explain the traffic study supported more traffic on Washington St. vs. Third 

Street, making a relocation of the bus lane less than ideal.   

 

Approved 
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Acting Chair Crnovich posed the possibility of moving the bus lane to the parking lot.  Brian 

Kronewitter pointed out that it is best practice to separate bus drop off from school parking 

lots. 

 

Acting Chair Crnovich suggested moving the parent drop off to Third Street or return the 

current HMS permit parking to residential.  Don White indicated the school district is 

working with the village to determine future use of Third Street.  He went on to explain that 

parent drop off would happen in the parking lot with cars queuing through the school district 

property relieving street congestion. Mr. White went on to explain that he anticipates the 

school will no longer have a need for the permit parking on Third Street after construction.  

Mr. White clarified that the parking lot for this evening’s proposal includes a surface lot but a 

bi-level deck could be considered in the future as part of an intergovernmental agreement 

between the school district and the village.  Chan Yu concurred that the discussion at this 

meeting was to be about a surface lot, not a bi-level parking deck.  Chairman Cashman asked 

Chan Yu to clarify that if an intergovernmental agreement was reached for a multi-level deck 

that the issue would return to ZBA and plan commission as a major site plan adjustment. 

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked for a better visual of the parking area & Mr. Helfrich indicated 

the slide showing the current proposed surface lot would not change if lot was changed to a bi-

level deck. The lots would be placed one above the other but a retaining wall would need to be 

added to the plan. Mr. Helfrich indicated that evergreen screening plants would be part of the 

landscape for the parking lot. 

 

Acting Chair Crnovich indicated concerns about the lack of detail in the landscaping plan 

presented. It was stated that ten trees are included in the plan to exceed the number of trees 

required by ordinance.  Acting Chair Crnovich requests a more detailed landscaping plan.  

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked for the materials used for the retaining wall on the back side of 

the parking lot. Mr. Helfrich stated the wall would likely be uni-lock material with a shrub 

screen in front.  

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked for more information about lighting for the parking lot.  The 

exact design of the lighting is undetermined at this time but Brian Kronewitter explained the 

lot lights would be a taller version of the historical style lighting fixtures used in the bus area 

in LED if available. 

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked if some 15 minutes parking spaces were considered for use by 

parents dropping off items at the school.  Mr. Kronewitter indicated that visitor spaces would 

be identified outside the front door to be used for this purpose. Mr. Kronewitter went on to 

explain the current plan had 124 parking spaces for the estimated 108 spaces required by 

current staff.  

 

A concern was raised by a commissioner that the loading space was going to take away from 

potential parking and delivery trucks blocking the sidewalk.  Mr. Helfrich indicated there 

would be enough space for trucks to back in further than the diagram indicated and sidewalks 

would not be blocked and the current location of the loading dock minimized conflict between  



Plan Commission Minutes 

Special Meeting - January 19, 2017 

3 

 

student and vehicle traffic.  Mr. Helfrich continued to explain if the loading area was with the 

additional space needed to add a turn around to prevent delivery trucks from the need to back, 

it would greatly impact surrounding space used by students.  Acting Chair Crnovich inquired 

about the number of deliveries the school gets daily.  Mike Dugan, from District 181 estimated 

that the school receives 1 delivery per week from large trucks, the remaining deliveries are 

from vans and box trucks smaller in size.  Acting Chair Crnovich stated continued concerns 

with the safety of backing trucks over a sidewalk where there is a lot of pedestrian traffic. Mr. 

Helfrich suggested the plan would be looked at again. Acting Chair Crnovich suggested the 

idea of possibly limiting the delivery times if the location of loading area can’t be relocated or 

redesigned with a turn around.  Mr. Kronewitter & Helfrich responded that relocation of the 

loading area was less than ideal for close proximity to school kitchen and placing the loading 

area in view to residences.    Mr. Kronewitter stated that limiting the times of deliveries may 

be the best possible solution.  It was again stated by a commissioner that the present location 

of loading area may be short sided & that now is the time to discuss problems to and make 

changes to plans.   

 

Acting Chair Crnovich inquired how students will cross to the playing field.  Mr. Helfrich 

indicated that students would use the same route they currently use but a traffic calming 

device would be added for extra safety.  Students could re-enter the building through two 

different doors leading to the gym.   

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked for input from the commissioners on the loading dock.  

Commissioner Krillenberger acknowledged concerns but felt it was a practical solution with 

some trade-offs.  Commissioner Willobee indicated the traffic concerns with the amount of 

time needed to back trucks should be considered.  Those issues were addressed with the 

suggestion to limit delivery times to light traffic periods during the day.  Chan Yu requested 

clarification on the size of trucks using the delivery area.  It was stated that large trucks, 

between 70-80 ft. long, would be using the delivery area once a week for food deliveries and 

once a month for pop deliveries.  The bulk of the deliveries would be in the area of 30 feet or 

less.  Commissioner Willobee asked the line of sight for these backing trucks be considered 

when planting trees in the area.   

 

Commissioner Ryan asked if the primary focus of the design firm was schools and asked for 

some local examples of projects. Mr. Helfrich responded that school design was a major focus 

for the firms with College of DuPage, Waubonsee Community College, West Aurora Schools 

were some recent projects.   

 

Commissioner Krillenberger asked for more information on the community discussions that 

took place as part of the design process.  Mr. Kronewitter responded that the process of the 

first referendum consisted of at least 6 community discussions, a community input survey that 

followed the failed effort and revisions to the design from the survey resulting in a cheaper 

and smaller building.  The second referendum consisted of approximately 12 community 

meetings and meetings with neighbors to discuss the various proposed variances.  The traffic 

study was conducted was used to make further revisions to the plan and eliminated some 

previously sought variances.   
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Commissioner Peterson inquired about the street of main access to the school. Mr. Helfrich 

indicated the main traffic patterns are not shifting from current use as supported by the 

traffic study.  The Garfield entrance will be eliminated and there will much more room on the 

sight for cars to queue up on school property rather than in the public street, reducing current 

traffic congestion.  Acting Chair Crnovich indicated the school is in the process of designing a 

parent drop off plan (which the school currently does not utilize) further reducing the traffic 

congestion.   

 

Bill Merchantz, commercial property owner of 111 S. Lincoln, asked the commission to do all 

they can to support the potential District 181-Village partnership for the bi-level parking deck.  

He stated that parking continues to be a significant concern for all projects considered in the 

village and the potential for the agreement is a valuable opportunity to ease some parking 

shortage that must be planned for now.  Commissioner Krillenberger shares the concerns 

about planning for the opportunity to provide more parking spaces but he and other 

commissioners agreed that the surface parking lot presented in the current plan is all they can 

discuss and consider. Chan Yu also stated the commission can only consider the surface lot at 

this time. Commissioner Ryan asked about the potential costs of constructing the bi-level deck 

and Mr. Kronewitter stated those costs could be provided to the village if requested. In 

response to Commissioner McMahon’s inquiry about the status of discussions between the 

village and the school district, Dr. White stated the district is in discussions but no 

commitment has been obtained for the multi-level deck.  Dr. White elaborated that in an effort 

to be a good neighbor, discussions with the village would continue to determine if an solution 

to parking constraints could be determined however, the surface level lot in the currently in 

the plan will allow the school district to move forward with construction.  Mr. Merchantz has 

meetings scheduled with Brad Bloom to expedite the construction of the multi-level deck 

without slowing the progress of the HMS project.  Acting Chair Crnovich stated meetings had 

been held in the past to discuss concerns with area merchants and residents and likely more 

upcoming could be the appropriate place to discuss the multi-level deck but tonight they must 

discuss the plan before them.  Chan Yu stated that if any change may happen in the future for 

a multi-level deck, the change would need to go before ZBA and PC in the form of a major 

adjustment application to an exterior site plan.  

 

Commissioner Krillenberger requested for more information about the type of stone used in 

the plan.  Mr. Kronewitter responded by explaining cast stone, in lay brick and buff concrete 

would be used.   Commissioner expressed it was difficult to understand building materials 

without samples present.   

 

Acting Chair asked why the atrium was 50 feet tall.  Mr. Kronewitter explained the height 

created volume and drama, allowed for lots of daylight to enter. It was stated the school’s 

main entrance would be under the atrium.   

 

Acting Chair asked if it has been determined which mechanicals will need to go on the roof 

and how high the screening will be.  Mr. Kronewitter explained it would be buff in color and 

details are provided in the packet.   
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Commissioner McMahon asked about window details.  Mr. Kronewitter stated aluminum 

windows would be used and Chan Yu indicated further details were available on pages 20+ of 

the plan.  Mr. Kronewitter stated the colors used in the packet are reasonably accurate to 

what actual materials would be.   

Acting Chair Crnovich suggested presentation boards be prepared for the BOT meeting and 

Mr. Kronewitter happily agreed to prepare them to include a shot of the pre-cast, the brick, 

what the windows would look like.  However, Mr. Kronewitter stated the exact materials used 

would be unknown until bids come in.  The materials used on a presentation board will be 

general representations.   

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked how many entrances the building will have.  Mr. Kronewitter 

indicated all entrances out from the slide of the plan.   

 

Commissioner Fiascone asked for the materials used for the fence surrounding the dumpsters.  

Mr. Helfrich was unsure of exact material at this time, he stated the fence would be 6 feet 

high with gates.   

 

Commissioner Fiascone shared concerns of the safety of the crosswalk and suggested perhaps 

the village could install some flashing lights similar to those near the hospital.  Mr. Helfrich 

responded that he is working with the village to provide signage and a speed hump at the 

location of the crosswalk.  Mr. Yu stated he would communicate these concerns to the police 

department.   

 

Mr. Konewitter was asked to share renderings of the Garfield side of the school. 

 

General comments from the PC was the building was a very good looking building that would 

fit in well with the downtown area and the neighborhood.   

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked for more information about the weather station.  Dr. White 

responded it would support STEM education & they hoped to keep it in the plan to support the 

education of the students.   

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked about signage.  Dr. White indicated that traffic signage was in 

the plan and interior signage of the building has not yet been addressed.  Dr. White stated the 

historical plaques would be saved from around the current building and discussions are taking 

place on how to preserve pieces of the current building in the new construction.   

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked about the playing field.  Mr. Kronewitter stated it would be 

restored with seed. 

 

Acting Chair Crnovich asked about stormwater.  Mr. Helfrich stated the stormwater will be 

meeting existing conditions with some oversized swales.  The bulk of the detention will be 

located underground in the south eastern and western corner.  Another underground vault is 

being considered for the northeastern corner.  It is the intention to keep the bus lot’s 

permeable pavers.   
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Acting Chair Crnovich asked when the start date of the project is.  Mr. Kronewitter stated 

they were hoping to break ground in April. Acting Chair believes the plan to blend well and 

asks that they continue to look at bus lane options, loading docks or vendor delivery plans, the 

desire to see a more detailed landscaping plan, view building materials and screen samples.  

 

Commissioner McMahon stated that keeping the bus lanes in the current locations made the 

most sense & they did a good job maximizing space and balancing factors.  Commissioner 

Krillenberger and Commissioner Ryan and Peterson agree.  Commissioner Willobee asks them 

to continue to look at stormwater management.  Commissioner agreed the building looks great 

but added the parking lot is a huge issue to be addressed in the future.   

  

Acting Chair Crnovich asked if the commission was ok with sending the plan on the BOT.  

Members agreed.  Commissioner made an inquiry if they PC would have a future opportunity 

to look at samples, Chan Yu explained a findings recommendation would be prepared with the 

concerns of the PC and final approval would take place by the BOT.  Chair Cashman asked 

when the BOT would see the plan if a vote was taken tonight.  Mr. Yu replied that it may be 

too close to the February 7th BOT meeting agenda, it would likely be on the February 21st 

agenda.  The applicant reported the first reading for the BOT would be February 7th and final 

approval on February 21st.  Further discussion established that to expedite the process, a vote 

can be taken tonight with a possible draft of findings and recommendations that would go to 

the BOT.  Mr. Kronewitter clarified that the presentation of samples would be available for 

presentation for the February 7th BOT meeting.   

 

Commissioner  Krillenberger motioned to approve site plan exterior appearance contingent on 

ZBA variation approval is submitted  case number V-07-16.  Commissioner McMahon 

seconded.  The motion passed unanimously, 7-0 (1 recused, 1 absent).  

 

Adjournment 

Commissioner Krillenberger motioned to adjourn.  Commissioner Willobee seconded.  The 

meeting adjorned at 9:05 p.m. on January 19, 2017.   

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Jennifer Spires, Community Development Dept.  
 



 

MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

PLAN COMMISSION 

February 8, 2017 

MEMORIAL HALL 

7:30 P.M. 

 

Chairman Cashman called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m., Wednesday, February 8, 2017, in 

Memorial Hall, the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois.   

 

PRESENT: Chairman Cashman, Commissioner Ryan, Commissioner Fiascone, 

Commissioner Krillenberger and Commissioner Willobee, Commissioner 

Unell, and Commissioner McMahon 

 

ABSENT: Commissioner Peterson and Commissioner Crnovich  

 

ALSO PRESENT: Chan Yu, Village Planner 

 Applicant Representatives for Case: A-38-16, A-40-16, A-30-16 and A-37-

16  

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Approval of Minutes 

Chairman Cashman asked the Plan Commission (PC) if anyone has any comments, revisions 

or suggestions to minutes from January 11, 2016. Commissioner Krillenberger explained that 

on sheet 1 of page 15 of the transcript, he was not listed as present but he was present at that 

meeting.   Chairman Cashman asked that correction be noted & asked for a motion to approve 

the minutes. Commissioner Ryan motioned and Commissioner McMahon seconded.  The 

motion passed unanimously (7 Ayes, and 2 absent).  

 

 

Findings and Recommendations 

 

Case A-18-2016 – 55th St./County Line Rd.- Hinsdale Meadows Venture, LLC Text 

Amendment to Section 3-106:  Special Uses to allow a Planned Development in any 

single family residential district subject to the issuance of a special use permit, and 

subject to a minimum lot area of 20 acres. – Chairman Cashman asked if members had 

any comments about this issue after reviewing their notes. No comments or concerns were 

noted. Chairman Cashman asked for a motion to approve the Findings and Recommendations, 

Commissioner Krillenberger motioned, Commissioner Willobee seconded the motion passed 

unanimously (7 Ayes, 2 absent).   

 

 

Case A-41-2016 – 100 S. Garfield Ave.-Community Consolidated School District 181 – Exterior 

Appearance and Site Plan Review for a new Hinsdale Middle School (presented at Plan 

Commission Special Meeting Jan. 19, 2017).  – Chairman Cashman asked the PC for any 

comments related to this matter, none were noted. The Chairman asked for a motion to 

approve the Findings and Recommendations, Commissioner Krillenberger motioned, 

Commissioner Willobee seconded.  The motion passed unanimously (7 Ayes, and 2 absent).   

Approved 
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Public Hearings 

 

 

Agenda Item- Public Hearing – Case A-38-2016- 525-527 W. Ogden Ave.  – Kensington 

School – Text Amendment and Concurrent Special Use Permit for Child Daycare not 

operated by/for a membership Organization and Concurrent Exterior 

Appearance/Site Plan Review. – The PC was supportive for the use and Text Amendment 

application, and unanimously recommended approval for the text amendment and concurrent 

Special Use Permit as submitted, 7-0 (2 absent). 

 

The PC would like to see additional landscape and fence options for the playground area and 

parking lot between the adjacent residential properties to the north of the subject property.  

The PC would also like an alternative location for the refuse location.   

 

The office tenant of the property to the east at 501 W. Ogden Avenue is interested in the 

drainage plans but was informed those details will come during the building permit process.  

 

Commissioner McMahon moved for the Text Amendment and the Special Use, Commissioner 

Willobee seconded. The concurrent Exterior Appearance and Site Plan was unanimously 

continued to the next scheduled PC meeting, 7-0 (2 absent) for the above additional 

information.   

(Please see the attached transcript for Case A-38-2016 included as part of this record, Attachment 1) 

 

 

Agenda Item – Public Hearing – Case A-40-2016- 722-724 N. York Rd. – Hinsdale Animal 

Hospital – Text Amendment for Pet Hospital, Boarding Kennels and Grooming Services in the 

B-1 Community Business District as a Special Use Permit and Concurrent Special Use Permit 

Application. -  The PC was supportive of the Text Amendment application and concurrent 

Special Use Permit application, and took into consideration for Trustee Stifflear’s 

recommendation for the language to reflect only stand-alone buildings in the B-1 District.  

 

A concern was raised by a local resident regarding potential noise levels due to the height of 

the building.  A few Plan Commissioners had questions in regards to waste disposal.  This 

information is recommended for review by the Board of Trustees at First Reading.   

 

Chairman Cashman asked for a motion to approve the text amendment application for a pet 

hospital, boarding kennels, grooming services in the B-1 community business district as a 

special use. Commissioner McMahon so motioned and Commissioner Krillenberger seconded.  

The PC unanimously recommended approval for the text amendment, limited to only stand-

alone buildings in the B-1 District, and concurrent Special Use permit as submitted, 7-0 (2 

absent). 

(Please see the attached transcript for Case A-40-2016 included as part of this record, Attachment 2) 
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Agenda Item–Case A-30-2016- 210 E. Ogden Ave. –Shell (gas station) –Public Hearing for  

Design Review Permit application to add additional color to North and West facing Canopies. 

A sign permit application is also included to replace 2 existing canopy signs with Code 

compliant (and remove 2 existing canopy signs permanently). - Chairman Cashman asked for 

a motion to approve the design review permit as submitted, Commissioner Krillenberger so 

motioned and Commissioner McMahon seconded.  The PC unanimously approved the Design 

Review Permit as submitted, 7-0 (2 absent). 

(Please see the attached transcript for Case A-30-2016 included as part of this record, Attachment 3) 

 

Major Adjustment to Planned Development 

 

Agenda Item–Case A-37-2016- 120 N. Oak St. – AMITA Health  – Major Adjustment to 

Planned Development for Signage Replacement to 16 Existing Signs (Adventist to AMITA). – 

Doug Merit, Jennifer Horvath, Mark Levine presented information on signage not approved at 

the previous meeting.  Mr. Merit stated sign #1 now has a reduced height to match that of the 

existing sign. Chairman Cashman asked for some discussion on the illumination, Ms. Horvath 

response was not audible because she was not at the podium. Commissioner Krillenberger 

asked if a less bright illumination color can be used.  Chairman Cashman agreed and added 

he liked the more simplistic look and the base of the new sign.  Mr. Merit stated they were 

seeking the optimum contrast of the standard white on the non-illuminated sign.  Mr. Merit 

stated Sign #2 would also have a reduced height & design base consistent with the theme.  

Commissioner McMahon asked if the bases of all the signs would be consistent.  Ms. Horvath 

responded (some parts inaudible) the bases would be consistent with a projecting cross 

element.  Sign #4 was not discussed previously and would be smaller than existing sign.  

Commissioner Willobee’s inquiry about building signs was confirmed that building identifying 

signs would be located not on actual building but on ground signs.  The remaining signs 

discussed and not previously approved were discussed and were changed by reducing the 

originally proposed size and re-designing the base.   

 

Chairman Cashman asked about any plans to change the signage at other AMITA locations to 

make them consistent with those for the 120 N. Oak location.  Ms. Horvath stated that the 

signs at 908 Elm were being considered.  Chan Yu confirmed the receipt of the proposed sign 

at 908 Elm, it was code compliant, brick based, and is white with blue text.   

 

Chairman Cashman & Commissioner McMahon brought up concerns about the Cancer Center 

signs being inconsistent proposed AMITA signs. Ms. Horvath responded that designs of 

AMITA signs will be consistent moving forward.   

 

Commissioner Willobee asked about the signs on the outside of the parking garage at the Oak 

Street location, Ms. Horvath indicated she was not sure when Phase 2 of the project, which 

includes these signs, is slated to begin.   
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Chairman Cashman asked for a motion to approve the Major Adjustment Application to the 

Planned Development for sign replacement of 16 different signs as submitted with the revised 

signs of 1, 2, 5, 6, 7, 10, 11, & 17 will be in similar looks and previously approved signs.   

 

Commissioner McMahon motioned, Commissioner Willobee seconded.  The PC unanimously 

recommended approval as submitted 7-0 (2 absent). 

 

 

Schedule for Public Hearing 

 

Case A-26-2016 – 21 W. Second St. – TinkRworks, LLC – Text Amendment to Section 

6-106(B)(7) to include Tutoring and Concurrent Special Use Permit Application to 

allow tutoring educational services in the O-2 Limited Office District. - Commissioner 

Krillenberger motioned to schedule a public hearing for the co-application Text Amendment 

and concurrent Special Use Permit application for the March 8, 2017, PC meeting.  

Commissioner McMahon seconded.  The PC unanimously, 7-0 (2 absent) to approve the 

motion.   

 

 

Case A-33-2016 – 534 Chestnut St. – Christine Stec – Text Amendment to Section 6-

106(B)(7) to include Tutoring and Concurrent Special Use Permit Application to 

allow tutoring educational services in the O-2 Limited Office District. - Commissioner 

McMahon motioned to schedule a public hearing for the co-application Text Amendment and 

concurrent Special Use Permit application for the March 8, 2017, PC meeting.  Commissioner 

Willobee seconded.  The PC unanimously, 7-0 (2 absent) to approve the motion.   

 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:00 PM, unanimously after Commissioner Krillenberger 

motioned and Chairman Cashman seconded. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jennifer Spires, Community Development Secretary  
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
            )

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION

In the Matter of:          )
                           )
                           )
KENSINGTON SCHOOL, 525-527 )
West Ogden Avenue, Case    )
No. A-38-2016.             )

         REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony

taken at the hearing of the above-entitled

matter before the Hinsdale Plan Commission, at

19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on

February 8, 2017, at the hour of 7:30 p.m.
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     ALSO PRESENT:1

         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner; 2

         MR. CHARLES MARLAS, Petitioner; 3

         MS. BARBARA MARLAS, Petitioner.4

________________________________________________
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         CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  The first of three 6

public hearings is Case A-38-2016, 525 to 527 7

West Ogden Avenue, Kensington School.  This is a 8

text amendment and a concurrent special use 9

permit for a child day-care not operated by a 07:50:36PM 10

membership organization and also a concurrent 11

exterior appearance and site plan review.  12

              Actually, Kathy, we have three 13

public hearings.  We have this one.  The next 14

one is Hinsdale Animal Hospital and then the 15

third is the Shell station at 210 East Ogden 16

Avenue.  Do you want to swear everyone in?  17

Everybody who would like to speak on this 18

matter, if you would please stand and be sworn. 19

                  (WHEREUPON, members of the 20

                   audience were administered 21

                   the oath en mass.) 22

3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Please state your 1

name and address and who you represent and we 2

look forward to hearing your presentation. 3

MR. MARLAS:  Good evening.  My name is 4

Charles Marlas.  I am one of the owners of 5

Kensington School.  We are at 743 McClintock 6

Drive in Burr Ridge, Illinois.  7

We are here tonight to propose a 8

new location for our Kensington School at 525- 9

527 West Ogden Avenue.  We are requesting a text 07:51:44PM 10

amendment to the IB zoning code along with 11

special use inside the code to allow the use of 12

a day-care preschool.  13

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Can you tell us a 14

bit about the school, your past?  You have some 15

of this information in there but it would be 16

helpful to the people. 17

MR. MARLAS:  Of course.  Tonight I'm 18

joined by my mother, Barbara Marlas.  We have 19

been residents of Hinsdale for the past 40 odd 07:52:10PM 20

years.  I went to Oak School, Hinsdale Middle 21

School and Hinsdale Central.  We have been in 22

4

business for about 46 or 47 years providing 1

early childhood education services for the 2

western suburbs of Chicago for the entire time, 3

and it's been of high interest to us to be in 4

Hinsdale.  5

We have been serving the Hinsdale 6

community indirectly with our locations in 7

LaGrange, Western Springs and LaGrange Highlands 8

for the past 48 years, and we are just very 9

excited to be before you tonight to explore the 07:52:46PM 10

opportunity to become Hinsdale residents for one 11

of our schools.  12

So if there's any questions 13

relative to the site plan or relative to the 14

zoning or anything, I'd be more than happy to 15

answer the questions.  16

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.  17

Commissioners, any questions for 18

the applicant on the documents that were 19

submitted?  07:53:08PM 20

MS. McMAHON:  I did have some questions 21

on the site plan.  Well, basically, on the 22

5

egress/ingress to that site from Ogden, that's 1

kind of a tough section of Ogden there, it kind 2

of curves a little bit. 3

MR. MARLAS:  It is.  So we have engaged 4

with KLOA as our traffic consultants and they 5

are in the midst of speaking to IDOT and working 6

with doing traffic counts.  7

Our plan for the site is -- as you 8

know, it's an almost two and a quarter acre 9

site.  We are planning a 15,000 square foot 07:54:00PM 10

building.  It has all the parking required 11

onsite as well as a rather long interior traffic 12

lane to kind of keep traffic on the site as much 13

as we need for drop-off and pickup.  14

What our thoughts are right now as 15

far as traffic ingress/egress is on the eastern 16

entrance that will be a full access, continue to 17

be a full access right in, left out, full access 18

in and out and the west location will be a right 19

out, left out only, so not left in, not right 07:54:40PM 20

in.  It will only be an exit, won't be an 21

entrance.  22
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So our thoughts are as to bring 1

traffic into the location on the east entrance 2

and to create traffic flow inside the parking 3

lot along the drive along the front of the 4

building for drop-off, pickup and then exiting 5

out of the site on the west entrance only.6

MS. McMAHON:  So you would drive 7

through that long -- 8

MR. MARLAS:  Correct. 9

MS. McMAHON:  Towards westward.  It 07:55:16PM 10

would be one way westward.   11

MR. MARLAS:  One way westward, correct.  12

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  When do you think 13

you will have the traffic study completed? 14

MR. MARLAS:  It's something to work on 15

with staff so within the next couple of weeks I 16

would imagine.  It's an internal traffic count 17

by KLOA.  18

As you all know the process to deal 19

with IDOT, Ogden Avenue is an IDOT road, so I 07:55:38PM 20

think that's a little bit more of a lengthy 21

process.  22

7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Because that's 1

something I would definitely like to see is a 2

traffic study.  If I read the information 3

properly, you are talking about 160 children? 4

MR. MARLAS:  Roughly.  5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  23 staff members, so 6

over 180 visitors.  7

How do students get to the 8

building?  Are they all dropped off or is there 9

any kind of bus service or pickup?  07:56:10PM 10

MR. MARLAS:  It's early childhood so 11

it's infant through kindergarten.  Parents will 12

be asked to park in the parking lot and escort 13

their children in one by one.  14

So our hours of operation are 6:30 15

to 6:30 and for many of our locations, we have 16

this exact building in Wheaton and Elmhurst and 17

south Naperville, and it's similar drop-off and 18

pickup times have really no issues at all with 19

drop-off and pickup and how it impacts the main 07:56:40PM 20

artery roads that we are on.  It's a very smooth 21

process of drop-off and pickup from -- if you 22

8

could imagine the multitude of children coming 1

between 6:30 and 9:00 in the morning, that's a 2

pretty slow drip of traffic in and then pickup 3

at the end of the day is between 3:30 and 6:30.  4

So over the course of another three 5

hours at the end of the day you get another slow 6

steady stream of inbound and outbound traffic.   7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  In the morning how 8

are they staggered?  Why wouldn't it be everyone 9

coming in a half hour period? 07:57:12PM 10

MR. MARLAS:  Well, as you will see with 11

the traffic counts that we have done, it's just 12

people schedules are different.  Potentially 13

everybody could come all at once but that's just 14

not the way it works.  15

Parents start times for work and 16

such are always such that you get parents that 17

want to be there at 6:30 in the morning and 18

parents that want to be there at 9:00 in the 19

morning and everyone's schedules are such that 07:57:36PM 20

it is just a steady stream of gradual traffic in 21

and gradual traffic out.  Some parents are 22

9

coming in at 10 o'clock in the morning, some are 1

coming at 1 o'clock in the afternoon to pick up.2

It all depends.3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  This will be 4

reflected in the traffic study? 5

MR. MARLAS:  It will, yes.  We will 6

model one of our other existing locations.  7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I looked at some of 8

your other locations like the one in Naperville, 9

it's not very similar to this.  It's off of 75th 07:58:00PM 10

Street.  11

MR. MARLAS:  Correct. 12

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  This if you were -- 13

I was here at 7:30 this morning and there's a 14

lot of traffic.  Even just turning off of this 15

into the site, there's a lot of traffic.  I 16

think it's important that we see the data and we 17

can study it.  18

I'm in favor.  I like the project.  19

But I'm concerned about to make sure that we 07:58:22PM 20

just do it right because just this village we 21

have already shutoff Monroe from 7 to 7 because 22
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of accidents at that intersection and right now 1

we are not even really getting any traffic from 2

the Amling's property other than the people at 3

the surgical facility using it as overflow and 4

so I'm just kind of concerned.  And then I also 5

think that we need to anticipate the fact that 6

west of this property that's going to be 7

developed.  8

I like the concept.  I'm glad to 9

hear this idea about the right out on the west 07:58:54PM 10

because the office building on the corner that's 11

right on Western, they are much closer to the 12

intersection, but I just think that's kind of a 13

crucial piece to get right.  14

But what's nice is you have a nice 15

piece of land and you happen to have the 16

flexibility of design in something that can work 17

and then having that data I think we can 18

demonstrate that we have done and solved that 19

problem because that's kind of an important 07:59:18PM 20

criteria in the approval to make sure that we 21

are not creating undo traffic congestion and 22

11

this is a low speed road but people go at least 1

45 on this road. 2

MR. MARLAS:  I'm aware of it.  3

MS. FIASCONE:  Along the same line I 4

think another concern was if there's backup on 5

your property, people continuing on and turning 6

around in our neighborhoods and then coming back 7

through.  So I think that's something as well to 8

consider. 9

MR. MARLAS:  One of the benefits of 08:00:00PM 10

this site being as big as it is we do have ample 11

parking, obviously sufficient parking, as well 12

as that long internal drive to keep traffic kind 13

of on that site and coupled with the one way in 14

and one way out, that helps quite a bit.  15

Alongside that that inbound access 16

does take advantage of the left-hand turn lane 17

that begins right there as you want to make your 18

left onto Madison going eastbound on Ogden.  So 19

you do pick that up a little bit.  08:00:30PM 20

We played around with getting full 21

access on both sides and A, it just didn't make 22

12

sense from a traffic standpoint and B, it didn't 1

make sense for us operationally, so I think it 2

works well for both the village and for the 3

school this way.  4

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Is it anticipated 5

that IDOT is going to give you recommendations 6

too beyond what they permit you to do? 7

MR. MARLAS:  I would imagine so.  We 8

just made our first point of contact with IDOT 9

over the past week.  I wanted to wait to see 08:00:58PM 10

what the board of trustees had to say just 11

recently and they were okay with moving forward.  12

So behind that, we made all our efforts to go 13

through with our civil engineers and traffic 14

consultants and as such.  15

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Any other questions?16

MS. McMAHON:  I just want to go back to 17

clarify the western exit, which you said is exit 18

only, did you say it's only right or right or 19

left? 08:01:26PM 20

MR. MARLAS:  Right or left.  21

MS. McMAHON:  But exit only?  22

13

MR. MARLAS:  Exit only, that's correct.  1

So it will be unique in we are allowed 30 feet 2

ingress/egress on that site, so we can have a 3

right turn lane and a left turn lane so it will 4

work.  We won't have people looking to make a 5

left waiting behind right turners or vice-versa.  6

MS. McMAHON:  I have been in some of 7

your schools and I think it's a nice addition to 8

the village and to that location.  Really this 9

was my only concern was getting in and out of 08:02:00PM 10

that on Ogden.  11

MR. MARLAS:  I think the use is great 12

for the site.  I think it will fit well on the 13

site.  But I agree with you, traffic will be 14

something to work on and I think it's definitely 15

something we can together solve.  16

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Any other questions?  17

I have some questions.  18

On the parking area I looked at the 19

landscape plan that's submitted but I don't 08:02:32PM 20

believe you comply with our requirements to 21

provide buffering and screening of the parking 22
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area adjacent to the north to the residential 1

properties that are on the north there.  I'm 2

looking at your site plan or landscape plan you 3

show a six foot solid white fence along about 4

two-thirds to maybe three quarters of your north 5

property line but it stops at what would be the 6

west edge of the parking lot and then the 7

landscaping that's shown there is really not -- 8

doesn't comply with our requirements.  9

So a couple suggestions I would 08:03:10PM 10

have is to investigate continuing a full height, 11

possibly eight-foot high fence.  Also I'm 12

concerned, especially talking early mornings, 13

the property drops off as you go north and the 14

concern that some of those cars parking there 15

would literally be illuminating bedrooms on the 16

second floor not just the ground floor level, so 17

we need to make sure there's no way you could be 18

affecting them with people coming early dropping 19

kids off.  If you are excavating, possibly 08:03:42PM 20

berming is a possibility that could solve that, 21

but we need more information on that as far as 22

15

screening and buffering.  1

And then because you abut a 2

residential area, outdoor activities are also 3

controlled so we need to provide a 20-foot wide 4

open landscape area or a buffer.  And I looked 5

at your other facilities, it's not shown on your 6

drawings, but you seem to have typically at 7

least two play areas.  8

MR. MARLAS:  Correct.  9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I have seen two 08:04:20PM 10

playgrounds.  I have seen playground and a tyke 11

track, which I think is awesome.  I had a child 12

who went to an early childhood center that they 13

had a tyke track and that's great.  I'd like to 14

see where that's located and so we can 15

understand what's out there.  16

It also seems that you are going to 17

have a shed and there's no indication of exactly 18

where that's going to be.  It was nice.  I do 19

appreciate your package.  This is very thorough.  08:04:48PM 20

Your architectural drawings are excellent.  The 21

fact that you included all these samples I 22

16

thought was great.  Aesthetically, I think this 1

is perfect fit for the area.  But I think that 2

site plan figuring out the screening and the 3

buffering I think would be crucial if you can 4

look at it with your civil engineers and 5

landscaping.  6

Have you gotten to the point of 7

determining how you are going to handle 8

stormwater?  9

MR. MARLAS:  Not yet.  We just engaged 08:05:16PM 10

civil engineers and they will start running all 11

their calcs.  As you know, this is a pretty 12

interesting site with the topography on it.  It 13

has a crazy crown on it.  So we are not sure if 14

we will have to do some underground stormwater 15

management, a vault under a lot, anyplace we can 16

swale or berm or create on-site retention.  17

We will navigate through all that.  18

And I don't know if that's the purview of this 19

board or if that's something that we workout 08:05:44PM 20

with village with Al Diaz in the background 21

after we get our entitlements or how that works. 22

17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Stormwater would be 1

the village, but if you are going to be 2

excavating, maybe a material that you could berm 3

well. 4

MR. MARLAS:  To your point, I, frankly, 5

wasn't aware of the landscaping screening 6

requirement.  We are happy to accommodate 7

anything that this board requires.  If it's an 8

eight-foot fence all the way across the back, 9

I'm fine with that.  08:06:14PM 10

We ran into a similar situation at 11

our Wheaton school.  We are on Naperville Road 12

right near Seven Gables Park.  Very similarly, 13

we had a neighbor who requested us to plant an 14

arbor vitae hedge right along the side of the 15

parking lot for that very reason, so that lights 16

weren't shining into the back of his living room 17

at night and we were happy to make that.  18

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Was that along the 19

east side in Naperville?08:06:40PM 20

MR. MARLAS:  In Wheaton.  Naperville 21

Road in Wheaton.22
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CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  It's a requirement 1

and I talked about this with Chan and with Robb 2

McGinnis, our building commissioner, and it's 3

pretty common in our town to have an eight-foot 4

solid fence between any kind of nonresidential 5

use and a residential use, so that would help.  6

And then if you needed to berm or something, 7

that would certainly help also.  So I wanted to 8

just comment on those.  And then it would just 9

be helpful to see where those are going to take 08:07:14PM 10

place, that shed especially. 11

MR. MARLAS:  Okay.  The tyke track.  12

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  The tyke track. 13

MR. MARLAS:  The playground structures 14

where are they being located 25 feet from the 15

rear of the property.16

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I know we have 17

restrictions on where a playground could be or 18

any kind of structure or a shed.  19

And then one comment I had, just 08:07:38PM 20

trying to think of the neighbors, is in the 21

parking layout, you have the dumpster location 22

19

based at the northwest corner, which is about as 1

close to a house as you could get it, and I was 2

wondering if it was possible to possibly bring 3

that more to where you have parking space one?  4

It would be closer to a commercial property and 5

closer to Ogden.  I would just be concerned 6

about the neighbors love the beeping sound as 7

the dump truck, the garbage truck when it's 8

emptying.  Obviously getting there before your 9

children are coming. 08:08:28PM 10

MR. MARLAS:  The thought process was in 11

villages past, it's been the village preference 12

that it's not near the major thoroughfare so not 13

visible from the main road.14

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I'm open to ears on 15

it but that's a concern I have and maybe that's 16

something you can talk with Chan and Robb about. 17

MR. MARLAS:  Sure.  And be logistically 18

closer to the building so that teachers with 19

garbage can easily get to it and not be walking 08:08:52PM 20

through the parking lot during snow and rain and 21

such.  22

20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Your Elmhurst 1

facility has it near the road.  2

MR. MARLAS:  Yes.  3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  And same in 4

Naperville.  5

MR. MARLAS:  Sure. 6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  And I think in the 7

Naperville one it seems like it's as far away 8

from residential structures and I know it's a 9

trade-off but I appreciate the fact that you 08:09:14PM 10

included drawings of what it was going to look 11

like and I think it pretty well blends with your 12

fencing and the architecture of the building and 13

with some landscaping around it. 14

MR. MARLAS:  No problem.  15

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  People are going 16

pretty quickly down Ogden Avenue.  I think they 17

will be looking at your building not at the 18

dumpster enclosure. 19

MR. MARLAS:  It's a low dumpster.  It's 08:09:36PM 20

usually not a very high fence. 21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  We have had just in 22

21

other properties in these kind of locations 1

where they abut a residential neighborhood where 2

it's those kind of issues, these trucks in the 3

morning beeping. 4

MR. MARLAS:  Sure.5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Those were all my 6

questions.  I really -- I'm excited about the 7

property.  8

The other ones you have, I thought 9

it was fascinating you started Kensington School 08:10:02PM 10

over in LaGrange.  It's a great old school 11

building.  It's a beauty. 12

MR. MARLAS:  Yes.  It really is.  It's 13

our favorite. 14

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I lived in LaGrange 15

and I loved that building but I didn't realize 16

that was their first school.  17

MS. MARLAS:  It's a nice school. 18

MR. MARLAS:  Yes.  19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  The other facilities 08:10:22PM 20

I think this will be a nice use to transition to 21

in a way buffer Ogden Avenue and transition to 22
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the residential areas behind it.   1

MR. MARLAS:  Thank you.  2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  It will be a nice 3

addition and hopefully someday Amling's will 4

change too. 5

MR. MARLAS:  We tried getting that 6

property for a number of years; it was not 7

happening.8

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Are there any 9

community members that would like to speak on 08:10:58PM 10

behalf of this?  11

MR. SIGFUSSON:  Paul Sigfusson.  I'm at 12

501 West Ogden.  Next door is where I office.  13

Our building is a little closer.  I'm certainly 14

concerned about water issues because of the 15

crown that they have on the property and we 16

enter on Madison with the light and some people 17

exit on Ogden and it's like a suicide.  18

I went out today to run over to 19

Home Depot and get something at the lunch hour 08:11:34PM 20

and if you have the light coming in and you know 21

that from that proximity so I'm anxious to see 22

23

the traffic study. 1

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Your office is right 2

on the corner there?  3

MR. SIGFUSSON:  501 Ogden.  4

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  So do you typically 5

try to get out on Madison also?6

MR. SIGFUSSON:  Yes.  7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I was curious 8

because there's that curb cut that's right turn 9

only, westbound only. 08:11:58PM 10

MR. SIGFUSSON:  Yes, I did exit out 11

there.  Of course I live in the other direction 12

so I go in and out Madison.  Most of my patients 13

go in and out on Madison and there are a couple 14

of therapists in the building; there's an 15

accountant in the building.  16

The building was built in '77.  We 17

did have a dumpster in the back.  We brought it 18

to the front to keep it away from the 19

residential.  It's in the front corner.  It 08:12:16PM 20

harbors itself to be a community site, oh, I see 21

it, dumpster diving situation.  22

24

But this property, obviously, it's 1

a nice piece of property, and of course, I'm 2

very anxious to see what happens as you go 3

further into that and I think I would like to 4

see your commission look at that as an umbrella 5

and see how this impact all that area.  But 6

right, left, traffic is a concern.  The safety 7

issue.  It has no impact on our building, no 8

impact to us at all.  It would be nice to clear 9

out a lot of the trees and refresh the space.  08:12:52PM 10

But I'm telling you, I live it; I see it.  I 11

look out those windows and it's a thoroughfare 12

with high-speed cars coming by there. 13

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thanks.  14

Any other comments?  15

(No response.) 16

Hearing none, here's my only 17

concern with calling a motion and a vote tonight 18

is that traffic piece.  I would really like to 19

see a traffic study because I just feel like we 08:13:18PM 20

would be not doing our job to just hope it was 21

right.  22

25

MR. WILLOBEE:  I agree. 1

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  My hope would be if 2

we continue this to the next meeting, that you 3

would have the traffic study together.  4

Regardless if we are waiting on IDOT, just your 5

traffic engineer they have provided a lot of 6

information for us before and I think their 7

opinion would be helpful.  8

They were helpful with the Hinsdale 9

Middle School and they revised their site plan.  08:13:46PM 10

It was a month ago that we had them here based 11

on their input and their study of the existing 12

traffic and what Hinsdale Middle School was 13

going to do.  So I think it would help us and 14

ultimately help you.  I just think if you could 15

have a little patience, I'd like to recommend to 16

continue this for one month and then if we could 17

get that submittal.  18

These other items I think are all 19

things that you can easily address.  08:14:10PM 20

MS. McMAHON:  Is there any reason he 21

would need the text amendment to go forward on 22
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this?1

MR. YU:  So, Chairman, in the traffic 2

study do you think that pertains more to the 3

exterior site plan or the text amendment special 4

use permit?  5

Because typically the text 6

amendment comes first, and then the exterior 7

site plan comes after.  He just happened to have 8

the site plan ready and the landscaping plan 9

ready.  08:14:32PM 10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Okay.  I'd be 11

comfortable with the text amendment, or the use.  12

I'd like to hear what the other commissioners 13

think.14

MR. YU:  We can have two separate 15

motions, one for the text amendment special use 16

and one for the exterior site plan so you can 17

continue.  18

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Okay. 19

MR. MARLAS:  If I could ask a question?  08:14:52PM 20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Sure. 21

MR. MARLAS:  Is next month the first 22

27

available opportunity for us to revisit this or 1

is there an opportunity between now and 30 days 2

from now?  3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  That's our next 4

regularly scheduled meeting.  Last month we had 5

a couple but it's not normal.  6

MR. MARLAS:  Is there any way we can 7

handle this on a staff level just to kind of 8

keep going with our project?  9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I really want the 08:15:18PM 10

commission to be able to -- if for some reason 11

if you were able to get this traffic study 12

completed and communicate this with Chan, we can 13

see if we can call a special meeting.  We would 14

have to -- so it would be March 8th at the 15

latest.  If for some reason we can get the 16

results together, we can try and move it along.  17

We have to make sure we have a quorum.  18

MR. MARLAS:  Okay.  19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you, very 08:15:42PM 20

much.  21

MS. McMAHON:  So I'll move for the text 22

28

amendment and the special use.  1

MR. WILLOBEE:  I'll second.  2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Jim?3

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Aye.4

         MS. RYAN:  Aye.5

MS. McMAHON:  Aye. 6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.7

MR. WILLOBEE:  Aye.8

MR. UNELL:  Aye.9

MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.  10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Do I have a motion 11

to continue the exterior site appearance and 12

site plan review to either our next scheduled 13

meeting March 8th or an earlier time if we can 14

get the traffic study?  15

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  I'll so motion. 16

MS. RYAN:  Second.  17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Anna?18

MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.19

MR. UNELL:  Aye.20

         MR. WILLOBEE:  Aye.21

         CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.22

29

MS. McMAHON:  Aye.1

MS. RYAN:  Aye.2

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Aye. 3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you, very 4

much. 5

                  (WHICH, were all of the    6

                   proceedings had, evidence 7

                   offered or received in the 8

                   above entitled cause.) 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22
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30

STATE OF ILLINOIS )1

                  )

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )2

              I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified 3

Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the 4

County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby 5

certify that previous to the commencement of the 6

examination and testimony of the various 7

witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to 8

testify the truth in relation to the matters 9

pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by 10

said witnesses was reduced to writing by means 11

of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into 12

typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a 13

true, correct and complete transcript of my 14

shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.15

              IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have 16

hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 17

seal this 24th day of February, A.D. 2017.  18

19

                       _________________________20

                       KATHLEEN W. BONO,

                       C.S.R. No. 84-1423,21

                       Notary Public, DuPage County

22
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
            )

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION

In the Matter of:          )
                           )
                           )
HINSDALE ANIMAL HOSPITAL, )
722-724 North York Road,   )
Case No. A-40-2016.        )

         REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony

taken at the hearing of the above-entitled

matter before the Hinsdale Plan Commission, at

19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on

February 8, 2017, at the hour of 7:30 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;

         MS. LAURIE McMAHON, Member;

         MR. JIM KRILLENBERGER, Member;

         MS. MARY T. RYAN, Member;

         MS. ANNA FIASCONE, Member;

         MR. TROY UNELL, Member; and

         MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member.          
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2

     ALSO PRESENT:1

         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner; 2

         MR. JASON SANDERSON, Developer and  3

             Builder for Petitioner;

4

         MR. MICHAEL J. MATTHYS, Architect for 

             Petitioner.5

_______________________________________________

  6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Next order of 7

business is Case A-40-2016, 722 to 724 North 8

York Road, Hinsdale Animal Hospital, text 9

amendment for pet hospital, boarding kennels and 08:17:00PM 10

grooming services in the B-1 community business 11

district as a special use and a concurrent 12

special use permit application.  13

We had you here before on a sign a 14

year or two ago.  Please introduce yourself, 15

give us an overview of the project.16

MR. MATTHYS:  My name is Mike Matthys 17

of Linden Group Architects representing Hinsdale 18

Animal Hospital.  Here with me is Jason 19

Sanderson from R W E Management, the developer 08:17:46PM 20

and builder.  Thanks for taking the time to 21

evaluate our proposal.  22

3

We are requesting to move Hinsdale 1

Animal Hospital to a new location at 724 North 2

York Road in Hinsdale.  Our existing hospital is 3

located at 218 West Ogden Avenue in Hinsdale and 4

has been located in the community since 1950.  5

Since purchasing the animal 6

hospital practice, they have enjoyed a steady 7

growth that led to them outgrowing their 8

existing home and the need for new technology 9

and relaid out amenities.  08:18:18PM 10

The new facility we are planning on 11

North York Road will accommodate our current 12

practice, provide room for growth into the 13

future while providing an updated facility.  14

This move will allow the hospital 15

to update the facilities and provide state-of- 16

the-art animal care services to the Hinsdale 17

community including general veterinary services, 18

specialized surgeries, therapy training, 19

adoption, grooming and luxury boarding.  08:18:42PM 20

We are requesting a special use for 21

the proposed site at 724 North York Avenue to 22

4

allow the animal hospital use along with 1

commercial kennel use.  2

There are also several variations 3

that we will be following up and requesting 4

following this meeting if we are granted the 5

special use, including building setback on the 6

front setback which will match the existing 7

building that's on the site, a building height 8

variation for the architectural tower element 9

that you will see in the elevation, a floor area 08:19:14PM 10

ratio variation, and a parking setback 11

variation.  12

The variations for parking are 13

being requested to accommodate required off- 14

street parking requirements with the odd-shaped 15

property.  And you can see the double load 16

parking aisle that stretches along the property 17

line just fits within the two property lines.  18

The Hinsdale Animal Hospital will 19

be constructed of brick and stone.  Punched 08:19:46PM 20

window openings will be accented with stone 21

elements.  Brick detailing will include 22

5

traditional detailing, the soldier rollout 1

coursing.  The tower feature at the entry will 2

provide architecture interest.  North York Road 3

facing elevation.  4

The first floor plan will have a 5

generous lobby with ten exam rooms.  Operational 6

area will include small treatment area, a 7

pharmacy, animal carriers and boarding for 75 8

dogs.  9

The second floor will include a 08:20:12PM 10

large treatment area complete with two surgical 11

suites, an ICU area, dental treatment, isolation 12

rooms, animal wards, staff support area, 13

grooming and a large training playroom and a 14

luxury boarding room.  Proposed hours will be 15

Monday through Friday 7 to 8 p.m., Saturday 7 16

a.m. to 3 p.m., Sunday 9 to 1.  17

A few changes that have been made I 18

think since the original submittal based on 19

board recommendations as we were originally 08:20:44PM 20

showing on the site plan an outdoor fenced in 21

dog area which has been removed so we will not 22
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have outdoor facilities for the dogs.  We plan 1

on accommodating those with that indoor play 2

area.  We will provide -- it's a product called 3

pet turf that's designed to provide a grass-like 4

feel to the animals that works well as an 5

alternate to an outdoor area.  6

With that, I think I'd like to open 7

up to any questions.  I think you have all had a 8

chance to review the site plans and 9

architectural design and I'd be happy to go into 08:21:18PM 10

further detail on the floor plan if anybody has 11

any questions.  12

MR. YU:  I just wanted to clarify, in 13

the packet if you flip to attachment 1, that's 14

the process.  We are not looking at exterior 15

site plan, that will come later, because they 16

are applying for variations to the ZBA, however, 17

they have some of these things ready because the 18

board asked them to present potential what the 19

building would look like.  Right now it's just 08:21:42PM 20

the text amendment special use permit.  21

So they will be going before the 22

7

ZBA tentatively on the 15th and they will come 1

back.  If the variations have been approved, 2

they will come back with exterior site plan 3

review through the plan commission tentatively 4

around May 10.  So the materials, the 5

elevations, the site plan is additional 6

information that the board requested.  7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Can we comment on 8

the additional information?9

MR. YU:  Sure.  08:22:16PM 10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  One question for 11

you, Chan.  The property that is south and on 12

the west edge, what is that zoned where there's 13

a house?  This is a really odd piece of land.  14

Is that residential?  15

MR. YU:  It's zoned O-2.  16

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Related to the 17

parking is there going to be fencing around the 18

perimeter?  I imagine you are going to need some 19

fencing or something because you have no buffer 08:23:06PM 20

at all on the south property line but what about 21

the west edge of the double aisle parking lot?  22

8

MR. MATTHYS:  We would be -- wherever a 1

fence would be requested, we would put it up at.2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  There are no 3

connections between this parking lot and the 4

parking lot to the west?  5

MR. MATTHYS:  No, there are no proposed 6

connections.  7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I wouldn't want 8

there to be a connection.  We had some issues in 9

this area with the commercial property that's on 08:23:34PM 10

Ogden cutting through these properties.  So I 11

think ideally we would have fencing on the south 12

and at least the back of this property, if not 13

all the way around.  That would be a thought on 14

my part.  15

Jim, any comments, questions?16

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Is an animal 17

hospital noisy?  Is 75 kennels -- I guess this 18

goes to adjacent properties.  I don't know about 19

animal hospitals.  How noisy are they?  08:24:10PM 20

MR. MATTHYS:  Actually, we do have 21

barking animals but the idea is to contain it 22

9

all within the envelope of the building.  This 1

is a full masonry building and the sound rating 2

of that wall is somewhere around a 60 STC, which 3

is kind of a technical jargon, but it pretty 4

much knocks the barking down to within -- as 5

long as there's not a door open -- within 6

20 feet the sound really does drowned out and we 7

don't expect that to be a problem with the 8

adjacent uses that are in close proximity.9

MR. WILLOBEE:  Your current facility is 08:24:50PM 10

next to residential.  You have outdoor 11

facilities right now.  I guess, are there 12

complaints with that, Chan, has the village 13

heard anything?  I guess I'd like to understand 14

existing versus -- 15

MR. SANDERSON:  Jason Sanderson, R W E 16

Management Company.  So we design, build and do 17

the management for Kramer Veterinary Services 18

who is the owner/operator of Hinsdale Animal 19

Hospital, in addition to probably eight or nine 08:25:20PM 20

other animal hospitals.  21

So the current hospital does have 22
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an outdoor area.  They do do boarding there as 1

well.  And I was told that there hasn't been any 2

complaints and there's a residence that is -- 3

they continue to build houses around it and best 4

of my knowledge, there hasn't been any 5

complaints.6

MR. YU:  I have not heard any either.7

MR. SANDERSON:  Being a successful 8

operator, Dr. Kramer he has other facilities 9

near residential and so they are used to 08:25:50PM 10

operating as being a good neighbor so they don't 11

want to have any noise complaints because they 12

don't want to have problems with the village 13

itself.  14

So staff is well-trained.  I want 15

to say 150 employees as a whole group, so they 16

are successful operators at these.  But yes, to 17

the best of my knowledge, the existing facility 18

doesn't have any noise complaints and that is 19

part of this whole project is we would love to 08:26:20PM 20

stay where we are at and actually at one point 21

we proposed building a new building where we are 22

11

at but we are a nonconforming use and that was 1

not the direction of the board.  So we worked 2

with the board I would say probably since he 3

bought the practice in 2008 trying to find a 4

location.  Even considering the place that you 5

guys just saw for the preschool.  6

So we have tried to knock every 7

door up and down Ogden Avenue.  Looked at a 8

number of sites.  Sat down in Robb's office 9

probably 20 different times.  This one seemed to 08:26:50PM 10

be somewhat of a fit, so I know there's -- 11

ultimately if this project became successful, we 12

would turn those other lots back into 13

residential which I think kind of fit within the 14

village's wants and needs so that's part of the 15

story as well.16

MS. RYAN:  I have two questions.  One 17

relates to the neighbors.  Have you notified and 18

talked to the neighbors adjacent to and around 19

the proposed site?  08:27:24PM 20

MR. SANDERSON:  So we did the mailings, 21

the staff mailings.  We have not gone door to 22

12

door.  There was a little bit of a sensitivity 1

issue with the existing tenants that are in the 2

building, so there's a little bit of a timing 3

issue.  We have not gone door to door.  To the 4

south of us I believe is a vacant building.  5

Absolutely we would be open to doing like a -- 6

depending on what the interest level is from the 7

neighbors, doing like a little community 8

meeting.  9

MS. RYAN:  My second question relates 08:28:06PM 10

to given the nature of the medical aspect of 11

this business, what about kind of your waste 12

management practices in terms of I'm not talking 13

about regular garbage but all the other things 14

that are associated with surgery and things of 15

that nature.  Is that going to be enclosed 16

inside the facility?  Could you just kind of 17

address that?  18

MR. SANDERSON:  Yes.  So the medical 19

waste is governed by the state on how that gets 08:28:32PM 20

disposed of.  So there's an outside service that 21

they contract with that disposes of the medical 22

13

waste very similar to human.  There are those 1

sharp containers, the red containers that has to 2

be handled by law.  So that's all internally 3

contracted out.  There's contracts that are 4

signed.  5

MS. RYAN:  All the containers are 6

inside, there's nothing outside the building?  7

MR. SANDERSON:  Absolutely.  8

MR. YU:  There was a resident around 9

the area that came in and stopped by village 08:29:08PM 10

hall and asked about the application.  I gave 11

her the application and I told her about the 12

meeting and she looked at it and didn't have any 13

further questions or comments.  She had a 14

Hinsdale library name tag but I didn't catch her 15

name but she was a resident around the area.  16

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  How many mailings 17

went out?  18

MR. YU:  It's a 250-foot certified 19

mailing buffer.  08:29:38PM 20

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  So a handful.21

MR. YU:  Yes.  These are the certified 22
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receipts.  (Indicating.)  1

MR. MATTHYS:  I can try to give you a 2

reference point from this map.  The notification 3

it crossed Ogden to several properties over 4

here, came down across, went across and it 5

caught the first row of property almost all the 6

way out.  So it was pretty encompassing.  Even 7

these residential homes here were included in 8

the notification.  (Indicating.)9

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Okay.  I think 08:30:18PM 10

that's useful to know.  Thank you.  11

MR. YU:  I have about 28 receipts.12

MS. McMAHON:  I guess I just had a 13

question about the number of people coming in 14

each day because this is quite a step up from 15

the size of the practice on Ogden, maybe like a 16

doubling or so.17

MR. SANDERSON:  You should have in part 18

of your packet a traffic study.  I think there's 19

a summary.  Some of this stuff I couldn't speak 08:30:56PM 20

to but there's a summary page there, kind of 21

helps sum it up a little bit.  It talks a little 22

15

bit about the impact of the animal hospital 1

versus what is a commercial space, existing 2

commercial residential space.  The first one 3

there the animal hospital is projected to 4

generate fewer trips than the commercial space 5

in residential dwellings in the existing 6

building.  7

So similar, we have appointments 8

coming or clients coming all throughout the day 9

versus less than the impact of hey, they are all 08:31:34PM 10

dropping off in the morning, all picking up in 11

the evening.  12

MR. YU:  Just to clarify, if the 13

current building was totally utilized.14

MS. McMAHON:  So this says you are 15

expecting 90 to 100 clients a day versus 45 to 16

50 at the current facility.17

MR. MATTHYS:  So the summary on that 18

first page is related to peak time.  So at that 19

peak times it's a net reduction but overall what 08:32:08PM 20

you mentioned we have an all day flow the 21

overall flow is greater than the existing.  22

16

One thing related to traffic as 1

well, I think it's important to know, we are 2

eliminating that alley access out to York that 3

currently exists which will get landscaped and 4

have a landscape buffer up against our building.  5

We are also eliminating that street parking 6

that's on York which I think will also help 7

traffic.8

MR. UNELL:  Just in terms of the scale 9

of the building, so the current building is 08:32:48PM 10

24 feet high; is that right?  And then the 11

proposal is 37 feet for the new building?  12

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I thought you 13

reduced it to 35. 14

MR. MATTHYS:  Yes.  So the overall 15

building that you see is 30 feet, which is per 16

zoning code for the B-1, and then the tower goes 17

up to 35 feet which I think the zoning 18

regulations allow to go over that amount over 19

the regulated height for architectural elements.  08:33:16PM 20

The other thing to note is that we 21

are surrounded by a zoning district on all sides 22

17

that has a 40-foot allowable height.  So of the 1

allowable height of the properties that are all 2

around us even though those buildings are lower 3

today, they have the potential they could build 4

to 40.5

MR. SANDERSON:  I think we were at that 6

same zoning but the current owner down zoned it 7

a couple years ago.8

MS. McMAHON:  I actually wanted to ask 9

about that.  Are you familiar with that, Chan, 08:33:46PM 10

why the zoning of this building changed?  11

MR. SANDERSON:  I think it was for the 12

use, correct?  Because who they wanted to rent 13

to wasn't a permitted use so they down zoned it 14

to get the use to allow for it.  So when they 15

down zoned it, they put it into a different 16

classification otherwise we would be fitting.17

MS. McMAHON:  Yes.  It's kind of silly 18

to have it different.19

MR. SANDERSON:  Yes.  08:34:20PM 20

MR. UNELL:  Maybe just back to the 21

noise real quick because I think that would be a 22

Attachment 2 - 2.8.17 PC Minutes



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 6 of 16 sheets

18

concern for the neighbors.  1

You mention when the doors are 2

closed, it won't be audible from 20 feet away.  3

But would there be windows that might be opened 4

during business hours?  5

MR. MATTHYS:  We don't have any 6

operable windows. 7

MR. UNELL:  So it will really truly be 8

closed?  9

MR. SANDERSON:  Yes.  All fresh air 08:34:46PM 10

will be mechanically introduced.  We don't want 11

-- operable windows lead for a chance for a 12

small animal to get away, whether it's a bird or  13

a cat.14

MS. FIASCONE:  What are your hours?15

MR. SANDERSON:  Right now where they 16

are now?  17

DR. ASHAMALLA:  I'm Joyce Ashamalla.  18

I'm one of the major partners there.  I have 19

been there for about eight years.  08:35:22PM 20

Our hours currently are Monday 21

through Friday from 7 a.m. to 8 p.m.  Saturday 22

19

we are there from 7 to 3 and we are there 1

currently on Sunday from 9 to 1 but we are 2

potentially going to be 9 to 3 on Sunday.  So we 3

are pretty available but it spreads out the 4

amount of people we see.  5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.  6

Any comments, questions from the 7

community?  8

MS. LONDON:  Good evening.  I'm  9

Jennifer London, 628 North York Road, corner of 08:36:00PM 10

York and Fuller.  11

First of all, I'm thrilled to hear 12

that they are not planning to do any outdoor dog 13

runs.  That was a real concern.  I think we 14

still are concerned about noise level.  We want 15

to make sure that however that building is 16

constructed, that it really does reduce the 17

sound of dogs barking.  18

We are very close to the facility.  19

We have neighbors with dogs on the block.  They 08:36:24PM 20

know each other.  They are not barkers but all 21

it takes is a lot of unfamiliar barking to get 22

20

everyone starting and we could see that being a 1

real problem.  So we do hope that you will watch 2

out to make sure that whatever is done to the 3

structure of the building, that it really does 4

reduce the noise that we might hear from our 5

area.  6

I think the other concern is that 7

we all know that York Road has a tremendous 8

amount of traffic on it.  It's dangerous.  It's 9

difficult for people who are in those different 08:36:50PM 10

commercial areas who are trying to make left- 11

hand turns to go north, et cetera, to get out in 12

a safe manner and so we are concerned about the 13

volume of traffic that this might add to the 14

street that is already a lot of traffic and 15

wondering if there is a possibility of some sort 16

of traffic study to see what the impact really 17

would be to make sure that it's not going to add 18

to an already difficult situation. 19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Regarding the 08:37:18PM 20

traffic study, there is a traffic study in the 21

packet.  So if you go to the web site, you can 22

21

download it and it's attachment 6, kind of in 1

the back of the packet. 2

MR. YU:  If you want to hang around I 3

can give you my packet at the end. 4

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank, Chan.  5

MR. LONDON:  Andrew London.  Also at 8 6

North York Road.  7

I echo my wife's, you know, we are 8

glad it's going to be indoor and not an outdoor 9

kennel.  It's one of those things where when you 08:37:46PM 10

look at the noise, we are not that far away.  11

Unfortunately, we have had to come 12

before you kind of quite a bit recently and the 13

concern that we have is that when you get to 14

another height, if there is any of that noise 15

that escapes, it's going to travel a lot farther 16

because there's really nothing to block it.  17

There is a couple of buildings that are 18

relatively low south of it but they are not 19

going to break all that noise if it does escape.08:38:06PM 20

I think the other thing that bears 21

knowing is the comment about the fencing is 22
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valid.  You don't want to see an animal get hurt 1

if it does get out.  We do have some neighbors 2

that have had that happen.  Fortunately, I don't 3

think anything negatively occurred for the 4

animal or the pet but if you have that much 5

opportunity, unfortunately things will happen.  6

So that's just a couple of points there.  7

Just looking at my notes.  8

Apologize.  I guess the one question I do have 9

is with your current property how many kennels 08:38:44PM 10

do you have or boarding spots do you have?  I 11

heard two numbers when you said this facility it 12

was 40 and then I thought I heard 75.  So I'm 13

trying to understand the math a bit where are 14

you going from and where you are going to, 15

obviously noise amplifies.  16

MR. SANDERSON:  Currently there's 31 at 17

the existing facility right now.  18

MR. LONDON:  You are going to 75 19

internal; is that correct?  08:39:12PM 20

MR. SANDERSON:  Yes.  We haven't 21

finalized that out but somewhere in that 22

23

neighborhood, yes.1

MR. LONDON:  Okay.  I think I would 2

just echo my wife's comments about the traffic.  3

We have a front row seat.  York, Fuller and 4

Fuller going west and east so we see it's 5

excessive traffic.  It does block up right in 6

front of our house.  I don't know how someone 7

would actually come out of that property and 8

turn left going north on York.  That would be 9

disaster waiting to happen.  So I would be very 08:39:40PM 10

concerned about that.  11

I think the other thing you see on 12

York Road that people don't realize is that it's 13

a very heavily used area for emergency vehicles 14

to the hospital.  So that's another thing that 15

really adds to the traffic flow and adds to a 16

safety concern.  17

We do have neighbors up the street 18

that have kids and so on, so the minute you add 19

more impact, it's just going to be that much 08:39:58PM 20

more concern.  Thank you. 21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.  22

24

Any other citizens that would like 1

to speak?  2

MR. LONDON:  I forgot one thing.  Thank 3

you for the question about medical waste.  We 4

would also be concerned about feces.  That's not 5

considered medical waste but animal feces is 6

natural.  So we want to make sure that that was 7

properly handled.  8

We do have still issues with skunks 9

and I think everybody has that to a degree, so 08:40:34PM 10

anything that brings them around.  We have quite 11

a bit there for some reason, I don't know why.  12

I think it's probably because of the cemetery at 13

the end of the street they have a place to hang 14

out, but we would be concerned about making sure 15

that was properly contained and properly handled 16

and properly dealt with. 17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.18

MR. WILLOBEE:  Chan, I just want to 19

make clear.  So the text amendment is going back 08:41:00PM 20

to the original zoning essentially?  So it was 21

-- the zoning would have allowed this prior to?  22

25

MR. YU:  No.  Right now the B-1 there's 1

certain -- let's see here.  It's attachment -- 2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  It used to be O-2 3

and then it was converted to B-1.  4

MR. YU:  It's remaining B-1 but there's 5

only certain types of animal hospital use in the 6

B-1.  This would allow more flexibility, 7

including grooming, boarding and grooming 8

services in the B-1.  9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  So those are the two 08:41:46PM 10

functions that were listed?  11

MR. YU:  Right.  12

MR. WILLOBEE:  But would it have 13

conformed under O-2 I guess is my question?  14

MR. YU:  It's zoned B-1 right now.  15

MR. WILLOBEE:  I want to understand the 16

context of the intent of the original zoning.  17

MS. McMAHON:  If it hadn't been changed 18

from O-2, would these have been allowed in the 19

O-2.  08:42:10PM 20

MR. WILLOBEE:  My point is we don't 21

want do text amendment after text amendment 22

Attachment 2 - 2.8.17 PC Minutes



KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 8 of 16 sheets

26

undermining the intent of the zoning code but if 1

this was part of the original intent, I'd like 2

to know.  3

MR. YU:  Sure.  I don't see animal use 4

in the O-2.  5

I do want to bring up that this 6

went before the board several times before it 7

was referred, and Trustee Stifflear wanted to -- 8

if there is a motion for the text amendment, 9

that the Plan Commission consider that the text 08:42:36PM 10

only reflects stand-alone buildings.  11

MR. UNELL:  Just to clarify, this will 12

be a special use permit?  13

MR. YU:  Correct.  14

MR. UNELL:  So it will just apply to 15

this development in the B-1 district?  16

MR. YU:  Any additional vets that would 17

potentially want to locate in B-1 would need to 18

apply for the special use permit moving forward.  19

So it wouldn't be a permitted by right use.  08:43:02PM 20

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  I appreciate you 21

mentioning that.  22

27

MS. FIASCONE:  I think a stand-alone 1

building makes sense to add.  2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I do too.  I think 3

it tightens it up.  It could be popping up 4

downtown.  5

MR. UNELL:  Right.  6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Okay.  I guess it 7

will come back to us in the spring again for 8

exterior appearance and site plan.  9

MR. YU:  Right. 08:43:40PM 10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I think the focus 11

would be on the text amendment as a special use 12

and any discussion or more comment on that?  13

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  No further comment.14

MR. UNELL:  I would just ask when you 15

come back in the spring if you could just maybe 16

speak more to the noise and the efforts to 17

mitigate it.  I don't know if there's any type 18

of data that would be available or something, 19

but I know it's concern of the neighboring 08:44:08PM 20

buildings and residents.21

MR. LONDON:  The 250 feet noise travels 22

28

so well, it's just not that much relative to the 1

neighboring residents who live there.2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  If you can address 3

that when you come back.  I was looking on the 4

plan, you have no west facing windows in the 5

boarding areas.  Just look at the wall 6

construction, glazing and maybe when you come 7

back with some more data related to exactly what 8

your STCs are and if you can try to mitigate and  9

reduce the amount of sound. 08:44:44PM 10

MR. SANDERSON:  Sure.  11

MS. FIASCONE:  And if you are friends 12

with any of your current neighbors, maybe a 13

statement from them saying that they have not 14

been affected with the noise.15

MR. SANDERSON:  Absolutely.  16

Absolutely.  We can do FOIA the police records 17

to see if there's anything in our current 18

location and just to renege it too.  19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Part of the existing 08:45:04PM 20

building isn't it in a log cabin construction?21

MR. SANDERSON:  There are some historic 22

29

values to it.  We have worked with sound 1

engineers in the past so we can bring some of 2

that data as well just to kind of speak to that.  3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  That would be 4

helpful.  5

MR. YU:  Correct me if I'm wrong, the 6

building height, the 35-foot component is 7

essentially nonfunctioning, right?  Most of the 8

building is 30 feet.  The 35 feet is for 9

aesthetic purposes?  08:45:34PM 10

MR. SANDERSON:  Yes.  We worked with 11

one of the trustees and tried to play with -- it 12

is a unique lot.  So we are trying to fit what 13

we can in it to redevelop it, in a sense, and it 14

started to look like a box and so we were trying 15

to add some elements to it and it was pure 16

architectural.  We want it to look nice but in 17

the end that was just given some dimension.  18

MS. McMAHON:  Certainly the building 19

will be an improvement than what's there.  08:46:08PM 20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I like the tower 21

around that.  If you look at the street, a lot 22
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of those buildings were here when I was a kid 1

and it's nice to see them redeveloped and to 2

imagine the whole area to be improved.  3

MR. SANDERSON:  We took some 4

inspiration from the overlay district.  We went 5

up and down there a little bit.  Even the 6

McDonald's, the McDonald's was pointed out to us 7

and there was some arched openings and we tried 8

to, even though we are not in that overlay 9

district, we tried to bring some of that into 08:46:38PM 10

this as well.  11

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  The cancer center 12

has tower elements on it.  13

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Can you address 14

Mr. London's concern about animal waste?  15

MR. SANDERSON:  Sure.  Two different 16

ways and we end up working with the village on 17

this.  I was actually just walking through the 18

Hinsdale Human Society because our firm 19

specializes in building and designing animal 08:46:58PM 20

care facilities.  And inside there they actually 21

have almost like a bedpan toilet.  We have done 22

31

that in facilities.  So you would dump the solid 1

waste into almost what looks like an open toilet 2

with a flush valve and so the animal waste gets 3

circulated in with sanitary.  Some villages 4

don't like that.  So then from there we are 5

bagging and tying and we are putting it in with 6

waste, waste containers.  7

To the gentleman's point though, 8

it's a nice-size development.  It's a 9

substantial investment for the doctor.  We don't 08:47:32PM 10

want it smelling outside there.  We don't want 11

our clients coming up and smelling animal waste.  12

So it's just as important to us to have a nice 13

smelling, clean facility, and as it will be to 14

the residents.  I mean that's why we are trying 15

to move and redevelop because the facility we 16

are in right now just does not meet the level of 17

care that Dr. Kramer and his staff provide.  18

MR. UNELL:  So it won't be bagged and 19

put in dumpsters behind the building? 08:47:58PM 20

MR. SANDERSON:  We prefer not to.  We 21

prefer to have inside and flush it right down 22
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the system.  Sometimes we run into some code 1

interpretations when we do plan reviews that 2

don't want that.  3

MR. UNELL:  Is there an issue with that 4

potentially, Chan, flushing it?  5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Do we leave that up 6

to engineering?  7

MR. UNELL:  I think the concern is if 8

that doesn't work, nobody wants that in 9

dumpsters behind their building.08:48:26PM 10

MR. SANDERSON:  I would challenge you 11

guys, I mean, to visit some of his other 12

facilities because he boards at all the 13

facilities.  Drive around back by the dumpster, 14

you won't smell it.  I know that sounds --  15

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Where is the nearest 16

facility?  17

MR. SANDERSON:  Obviously the one in 18

Hinsdale.  19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I know that one.  A 08:48:54PM 20

newer one.  21

MR. SANDERSON:  A newer one in Oswego 22
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is probably going to be a similar size quantity 1

of boarding.  It was built in 2011; it won an 2

award for design.  That would be a comparable 3

one.  It's right on Ogden, he likes Ogden, and 4

near 30 and 34.  30 and 34 come together there's 5

a LA Fitness right on that intersection over 6

there but it's Oswego Animal Hospital.  We can 7

get a letter from Oswego as well if that would 8

help just as far as noise and odor complaints.  9

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Sure.  Are there 08:49:38PM 10

standards, The American Animal Hospital 11

Association, for example, that governs design 12

and waste management, soundproofing?  13

MR. SANDERSON:  So there's nothing that 14

necessarily governs it.  There's guidelines.  15

There's AAHA is one of them that's a standard, 16

it's the American Animal Hospital Association.  17

DR. ASHAMALLA:  That's more care not so 18

much the design of the building.19

MR. SANDERSON:  Correct.  But there are 08:50:06PM 20

some components whether it's the ceiling tile in 21

the surgery rooms or the flooring or stuff like 22
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that.  So there are some design standards but 1

there's nothing that really governs how that 2

gets handled that I'm aware of.3

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  So it's up to us 4

and your conscientiousness and neighbors. 5

DR. ASHAMALLA:  And there's OSHA 6

regulations as well.7

MR. SANDERSON:  If we can keep it 8

inside and flush it inside, we will flush it 9

inside, no problems.  08:50:34PM 10

MR. YU:  We will have that in the 11

findings and recommendations, that concern. 12

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Great.  13

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Any other comments, 14

questions for the commissioners?  15

(No response.)16

I'd like to hear a motion to 17

approve the text amendment application for a pet 18

hospital, boarding kennels, grooming services in 19

the B-1 community business district as a special 08:51:00PM 20

use?  21

MS. McMAHON:  So moved.  22
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MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Second.  1

MR. YU:  Mr. Chairman, do you want to 2

consider this text amendment for stand-alone 3

buildings only? 4

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I thought that was 5

by default in here?6

MS. McMAHON:  No, they just suggested 7

it.8

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes, we would 9

definitely like to follow the board member's 08:51:18PM 10

recommendation for a stand-alone building.  11

MR. YU:  Okay.  Is that the 12

understanding?  13

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Anna? 14

MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.15

MR. UNELL:  Aye.16

MR. WILLOBEE:  Aye.17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.18

MS. McMAHON:  Aye.19

MS. RYAN:  Aye. 08:51:26PM 20

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Aye. 21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.  Good 22
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luck.  We will see you sometime in the spring.  1

                  (WHICH, were all of the    2

                   proceedings had, evidence 3

                   offered or received in the 4

                   above entitled cause.) 5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )1

                  )

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )2

              I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified 3

Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the 4

County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby 5

certify that previous to the commencement of the 6

examination and testimony of the various 7

witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to 8

testify the truth in relation to the matters 9

pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by 10

said witnesses was reduced to writing by means 11

of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into 12

typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a 13

true, correct and complete transcript of my 14

shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.15

              IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have 16

hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 17

seal this 27th day of February, A.D. 2017.  18

19

                       _________________________20

                       KATHLEEN W. BONO,

                       C.S.R. No. 84-1423,21

                       Notary Public, DuPage County

22
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
            )

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION

In the Matter of:          )
                           )
                           )
SHELL GAS STATION,         )
210 East Ogden Avenue,     )
Case No. A-30-2016.        )

         REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony

taken at the hearing of the above-entitled

matter before the Hinsdale Plan Commission, at

19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on

February 8, 2017, at the hour of 7:30 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;

         MS. LAURIE McMAHON, Member;

         MR. JIM KRILLENBERGER, Member;

         MS. MARY T. RYAN, Member;

         MS. ANNA FIASCONE, Member;

         MR. TROY UNELL, Member; and

         MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member.          
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2

     ALSO PRESENT:1

         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner; 2

         MS. KAREN DODGE, Representative for 3

             Petitioner.  

_____________________________________________4

CHAIRMAN CUSHMAN:  Next public hearing 5

is A-30-2016, 210 East Ogden Avenue, Shell Gas 6

Station.  This is a design review permit 7

application to add an additional color to the 8

north and west facing canopies. 9

If there's an applicant, would you 08:52:04PM 10

like to give us your name and who you represent 11

and tell us a little bit about the project.  12

MS. DODGE:  My name is Karen Dodge, 13

D-o-d-g-e, and I'm here on behalf of Corporate 14

ID Solutions for the Shell located at 210 East 15

Ogden.  16

We are proposing a color change for 17

the two canopies at this location.  The previous 18

colors were yellow and red and we are adding a 19

painted white trim to the top of the canopy 08:52:40PM 20

which is ten inches wide.  The three colors are 21

highly desired corporate requirement.  The white 22

3

and yellow parts of the canopy are not 1

illuminated on either elevation, the sign is 2

illuminated on the outside only.  We are also 3

requesting the Shell text located on the north 4

canopy to be changed to their logo which is 5

located on the west and east side of the canopy.  6

The previous Shell sign located on the west 7

canopy will be removed. 8

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.  9

Commissioners, any questions for 08:53:24PM 10

the applicant?  11

MS. McMAHON:  Is adding the white is 12

that code compliant or is that an exception?  13

MR. YU:  It doesn't have signage across 14

the color of it so it's not considered a sign.  15

The only reason why it's before you is because 16

it's a design review overlay district and I used 17

the ground sign at the PNC Bank as an example of 18

what was reviewed before.  19

So essentially right now the 08:53:50PM 20

canopies on the Shell Gas Station there's four 21

signs on there that's nonconforming.  They are 22

4

removing the four signs on the canopy that says 1

Shell and then putting a conforming sign on 2

there but as part of the sign application, they 3

are adding a white band on top of the current 4

red and yellow and that will go with the look of 5

the canopy.  6

MS. McMAHON:  I like it better. 7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  This is the Shell 8

station on Cass.  9

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Did you take these 08:54:28PM 10

and print them up?11

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes.  Just 12

ironically when this came up last month and I 13

saw it was on there, I was pulling into the gas 14

station, and then I looked at the packet and I 15

prefer it.  16

MS. McMAHON:  I do too.17

MS. RYAN:  Very nice.  18

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Just to clarify, 19

some of the illustrations appear to have a 08:54:46PM 20

gradual color change within the yellow.  Is that 21

--22

5

CHAIRMAN CUSHMAN:  It's a curved 1

surface.  If you look at those photos, you will 2

see it has a slight bow to it.3

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Agree.  But that's 4

just confirming.  5

MS. DODGE:  It's one color.  6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I think it will 7

spruce it up and it looks cleaner.  8

Any other questions or comments?9

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  None.  08:55:24PM 10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you, very 11

much.  12

Any community members who would 13

like to speak on this color?14

(No response.)15

Hearing no comments, do I have a 16

motion to approve the design review permit as 17

submitted?  18

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  I so motion.  19

MS. McMAHON:  Second.  08:55:48PM 20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Jim?21

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Aye.22
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6

MS. RYAN:  Aye.1

MS. McMAHON:  Aye.2

CHAIRMAN CUSHMAN:  Aye.3

MR. WILLOBEE:  Aye.4

MR. UNELL:  Aye.5

MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.6

         CHAIRMAN CUSHMAN:  Thank you.  7

                  (WHICH, were all of the    8

                   proceedings had, evidence 9

                   offered or received in the 10

                   above entitled cause.) 11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

7

STATE OF ILLINOIS )1

                  )  ss:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )2

              I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified 3

Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the 4

County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby 5

certify that previous to the commencement of the 6

examination and testimony of the various 7

witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to 8

testify the truth in relation to the matters 9

pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by 10

said witnesses was reduced to writing by means 11

of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into 12

typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a 13

true, correct and complete transcript of my 14

shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.15

              IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have 16

hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 17

seal this 27th day of February, A.D. 2017.  18

19

                       _________________________20

                       KATHLEEN W. BONO,

                       C.S.R. No. 84-1423,21

                       Notary Public, DuPage County

22
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HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
RE:  Case A-40-2016 – Applicant: Dr. Anthony Kremer, Hinsdale Animal Hospital 
 
Request: Text Amendment to Zoning Code Section 5-105(C), to allow Pet Hospitals, Boarding Kennels and 

Grooming Services, in a stand-alone building, with a Special Use permit in the B-1 Community 
Business District 

 
DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION REVIEW:   February 8, 2017  
 
DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1

ST
 READING:  March 7, 2017 

 
 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

I.  FINDINGS 
 
1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant for the proposed new animal hospital in the B-1 Community Business 

District at 722-724 N. York Road. Mr. Michael Matthys, of Linden Group Architects and Jason Sanderson, RWE 
Management Company (developer) reviewed the proposed new stand-alone animal hospital building. They 
reviewed that Hinsdale Animal Hospital is currently located at 218 W. Ogden Avenue, and has been part of 
Hinsdale since 1950. The planned services offered by the new animal hospital, will include general veterinary 
services, specialized surgeries, therapy training, adoption, grooming and luxury boarding.    
 

2. The Zoning Ordinance only allows Grooming Services for pets (SIC 0752) in the B-2 District with a Special Use 
Permit, and Veterinary services for animal specialties (SIC 0742) in the B-3 District as a Permitted Use; Sections 5-
105(C)(1) and 5-102(E)(1), respectively. Thus, the applicant is requesting a text amendment to allow the above 
uses in the B-1 District, with a Special Use Permit.  
 

3.     The applicant reviewed the concurrent variation application to the Zoning Board of Appeals and Chan, Village 
Planner, explained review for the building and site plan will come back to the Plan Commission (PC) through the 
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan application. The applicant also reviewed the floor plan of the proposed animal 
hospital. 

 
4.   A Plan Commissioner asked for additional information in regards to noise management and animal waste 

management practices. Mr. Jason Sanderson reviewed that medical waste is governed by the state in terms of 
disposal. It was clarified that medical waste is contained indoors, and picked up by a subcontracted company.    

 
5. Mr. Jason Sanderson briefly summarized the findings of the traffic study, and that the animal hospital is projected to 

generate fewer trips than the current commercial/residential building. Chan clarified the finding is based on a fully 
utilized commercial/residential building. 

 
6.   The PC Chairman asked if anyone at the Public Hearing would like to speak in regards to the application. A 

neighborhood resident had concerns for the height of the proposed building, indicating that noise will travel further 
should any noise escape the building. The number of kennels (approximately 75) is a concern since per the 
resident, noise amplifies. He also echoed a previous resident’s concern for the potential traffic impact in the area. 

 
 

II. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the Text Amendment application, limited to stand-alone buildings in 
the B-1 District, and concurrent Special Use Permit application, the Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote 
of seven (7) “Ayes,” and two (2) “Absent,” recommends that the President and Board of Trustees approve the Text 
Amendment application, limited to stand-alone buildings in the B-1 District, and concurrent Special Use Permit 
application. 

     
THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By:  ________________________________ 

                               
Chairman 

                          
                          Dated this __________ day of ____________________, 2017.   



HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
RE:  Case A-30-2016 – Applicant: Corporate ID Solutions, for Shell (gas station at 210 E. Ogden Ave.) 
 
Request: Design Review Permit to add additional color to existing canopies and sign permits for 2 canopy signs 

in the Design Review Overlay District 
 
DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION REVIEW:   February 8, 2017  
 
DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1

ST
 READING:  March 7, 2017 

 
 

 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

I.  FINDINGS 
 
1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant for a proposed new additional color (3 total) on the 2 Shell gas station 

canopies in the Design Review Overlay District and B-3 General Business District at 210 E. Ogden Avenue. Ms. 
Karen Dodge, of Corporate ID Solutions reviewed the existing colors are red and yellow, and the request is to add a 
painted white trim to the top of the canopy that is ten inches wide. The three colors are a highly desired corporate 
requirement she explained. The red is only illuminated on the sides facing the streets.  
 

2. The four (4) existing canopy signs with the text, “Shell” will be removed, and two (2) Code compliant canopy signs 
will be installed only on the east and west sides of the north canopy. This is a net reduction of two signs at the 
subject property. 
 

3.      A Plan Commissioner commented that it’s a visual improvement, and the logo looks better than the text. In general, 
the PC preferred the request over the existing canopies and signage. 

 
4.   A Plan Commissioner asked if there is a gradual/gradient color change (yellow), as it appears on the exhibit. Ms. 

Karen Dodge responded no, it is only one solid color.  
 
5.   The Plan Commission Chairman asked if anyone at the Public Hearing would like to speak in regards to the 

application. There were no questions or comments from the audience.  
 
 
 

II. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the Design Review Permit as submitted, the Village of Hinsdale Plan 
Commission, on a vote of seven (7) “Ayes,” and two (2) “Absent,” recommends that the President and Board of 
Trustees approve the Design Review Permit as submitted. 

     
 
 

 
THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By:  ________________________________ 

                               
Chairman 

                          
                          Dated this __________ day of ____________________, 2017.   



HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
RE:  Case A-37-2016 – Applicant: Icon, for AMITA Health (formally known as Adventist Hospital at 120 N. Oak St.) 
 
Request: Major Adjustment to Planned Development for Signage Replacement to 16 Existing Signs  
 
DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION REVIEW:   January 11, 2017, continued to February 8, 2017  
 
DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1

ST
 READING:  March 7, 2017 

 
 

 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

I.  FINDINGS 
 
1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant for a proposed sign application package to rebrand 16 existing Adventist 

Hospital signage at 119, 120 and 135 N. Oak Street to reflect AMITA Health on January 11, 2017. The subject 
properties the hospital is located on is approximately 13.5 acres, and is in the HS Health Services District.   
 

2. The PC had general concerns for the larger signs requested to be replaced for Signs 1, 2, 6, 10 and 11. After the 
PC continued the application for the February 8, 2017, PC meeting, the applicant revised said signs with smaller 
dimensions.  
 

3.      The PC had general concerns for the aesthetics of the pole/post sign style for Signs 2, 5, 6, 7, 14,  and 17. After the 
PC continued the application for the February 8, 2017, PC meeting, the applicant revised said signs with a solid 
base and unified design feature.  

 
4.   On February 8, 2017, the applicant, Doug Merritt and Jennifer Horvath, reviewed the revised sign package request 

with the PC, indicating the revisions were based on the concerns from the January 11, 2017, PC meeting. To that 
end, Mr. Merritt reviewed only the signs that were not approved by the PC at the initial meeting.  

 
5.       A Plan Commissioner asked if there is a “white” a level lower/muted than the requested. Mr. Merritt explained since 

the signs are not illuminated, the optimum contrast is desired. This also helps for example, when headlights shine 
onto the non-illuminated signs (providing for the “optimum pop”, as referenced).  

 
6.    The Chairman commented that the overall sign package is better than the current signage because it is 

simpler/easier to read and follow.   
 
 
 

II. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the Major Adjustment to Planned Development revised application as 
submitted, the Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of seven (7) “Ayes,” and two (2) “Absent,” 
recommends that the President and Board of Trustees approve the revised application as submitted. 

     
 
 

 
THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By:  ________________________________ 

                               
Chairman 

                          
                          Dated this __________ day of ____________________, 2017.   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   March 8, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  525-527 W. Ogden Ave. – Kensington School 

Public Hearing for Text Amendment Application for Child Daycare Services in the IB 
Institutional Buildings District as a Special Use 
Concurrent Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review  
*Revised Landscape Plan* to show Fence, Play Areas and alternative Refuse Location                                   

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Charles Marlas, of Kensington Schools, 

requesting approval for a Text Amendment to allow child daycare services in general, with a Special Use 

permit in the IB Institutional Buildings District. Currently, the special uses of the IB District, Section 7-

305(E) only allows “Child daycare services operated by or for a membership organization”. Per the SIC 

code (86), “membership organizations” excludes business establishments but includes political and 

religious organizations.  The applicant has also submitted a concurrent Exterior Appearance and Site 

Plan application for its new school. 

On January 10, 2017, the Board of Trustees (BOT) referred the Text Amendment and Special Use 

applications to the Plan Commission (PC).  On January 11, 2017, the PC scheduled the public hearing for 

February 8, 2017.  The BOT had no general concerns for the proposed request.  The Exterior Appearance 

and Site Plan application does not require Board referral and begins with the PC.  

On February 8, 2017, the PC reviewed the application at the public hearing and was supportive for the  

Text Amendment and Special Use Permit applications. However, the PC requested to see additional 

landscape and fence options for the playground area and parking lot between the adjacent residential 

properties to the north of the subject property (update to the Site Plan). The PC would also like an 

update from I-DOT who controls that section of Ogden Avenue, a traffic study, and an alternative 

location for the refuse space. To that end, the PC continued the Public Hearing for the March 8, 2017, PC 

meeting. 

The applicant has submitted a revised landscape plan and will have their traffic engineers present at the 

March 8, 2017, Public Hearing meeting for presentation and questions by the PC and public. The 

landscape plan shows additional parking lot buffering on the north, 8-foot fence, play areas, shed 

location, new refuse location and off street loading space. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Request and Analysis 

Child daycare services are primarily engaged in the care of infants and children, while providing 

educational programs. Kensington Schools was founded in 1969, and is a private nursery, preschool and 

kindergarten institution. There are currently twelve (12) locations in the suburbs of Chicago, including 

Burr Ridge, LaGrange, Glenview and Naperville.  

The subject property, 525-527 W. Ogden Avenue, is approximately 98,323 square feet (SF) and is 

underutilized with two (2) vacant buildings. The applicant plans to demolish the two buildings and 

construct a new Code compliant 15,000 SF one-story school with a new parking lot. The applicant has  

included photos of its Burr Ridge school as an example of one of their existing schools. A site plan and 

elevations of the new school is included, and shows the façade, roof and trim materials. A site plan 

overlay is included to show the plan over the existing subject property.  A landscape plan with plant 

species list and refuse screen plan is also attached to the application. 

Process 

Within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of the public hearing, the PC shall transmit to the 

BOT its recommendation in the form specified by subsection 11-103(H). The failure of the PC to act 

within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of such hearing, or such further time to which the 

applicant may agree, shall be deemed a recommendation for the approval of the proposed amendment 

as submitted. 

 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Revised Landscape Plan 
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Aerial View of 525-527 W. Ogden Avenue 
Attachment 4 -  Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Application 
 
The following related materials were provided for the Plan Commission of this item on February 8, 2017, 

and can be found on the Village website at:  

http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/document_center/PlanCommission/2017/FEB/Feb_8_2017_PC

_Packet.pdf 

Text Amendment/Special Use Applications 
SIC Code Membership Organizations (86) and Child Daycare (835) Definitions  
Current Buildings at 525-527 W. Ogden Avenue 
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=10&find=11-103
http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/document_center/PlanCommission/2017/FEB/Feb_8_2017_PC_Packet.pdf
http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/document_center/PlanCommission/2017/FEB/Feb_8_2017_PC_Packet.pdf
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Attachment н:   Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

DEPARTMENT 
EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND 
SITE PLAN REVIEW CRITERIA 

 

 
 

Address of proposed request:  __________________________________________________ 
 
REVIEW CRITERIA 
 

Section 11-606 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Exterior appearance review.  The exterior appearance 

review process is intended to protect, preserve, and enhance the character and architectural heritage and 

quality of the Village, to protect, preserve, and enhance property values, and to promote the health, safety, and 

welfare of the Village and its residents.  Please note that Subsection Standards for building permits refers to 

Subsection 11-605E Standards and considerations for design permit review.   

***PLEASE NOTE***   If this is a non-residential property within 250 feet of a single-family 

residential district, additional notification requirements are necessary.  Please contact the Village 

Planner for a description of the additional requirements.  

 

FEES for Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Review: 

Standard Application: $600.00 

Within 250 feet of a Single-Family Residential District: $800 

 
Below are the criteria that will be used by the Plan Commission, Zoning and Public Safety 
Committee and Board of Trustees in reviewing Exterior Appearance Review requests.  Please 
respond to each criterion as it relates to the application.  Please use an additional sheet of paper 
to respond to questions if needed. 
 
1. Open spaces.  The quality of the open space between buildings and in setback spaces 

between street and facades.   
 
 
 

2. Materials.  The quality of materials and their relationship to those in existing adjacent 
structures.  

 
 
 

3. General design.  The quality of the design in general and its relationship to the overall 
character of neighborhood.  
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4. General site development.  The quality of the site development in terms of landscaping, 
recreation, pedestrian access, auto access, parking, servicing of the property, and impact on 
vehicular traffic patterns and conditions on-site and in the vicinity of the site, and the retention 
of trees and shrubs to the maximum extent possible.   

 
 
 
 

5. Height.  The height of the proposed buildings and structures shall be visually compatible with 
adjacent buildings.  
 
 
 

6. Proportion of front façade.  The relationship of the width to the height of the front elevation 
shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually 
related.   

 
 
 

7. Proportion of openings.  The relationship of the width to the height of windows shall be visually 
compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to which the building is visually related.  

 
 
 

8. Rhythm of solids to voids in front facades.  The relationship of solids to voids in the front 
façade of a building shall be visually compatible with buildings, public ways, and places to 
which it is visually related.   

 
 
 

9. Rhythm of spacing and buildings on streets.  The relationship of a building or structure to the 
open space between it and adjoining buildings or structures shall be visually compatible with 
the buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related.   

 
 
 

10. Rhythm of entrance porch and other projections.  The relationship of entrances and other 
projections to sidewalks shall be visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, and 
places to which it is visually related.   

 
 
 

11. Relationship of materials and texture.  The relationship of the materials and texture of the 
façade shall be visually compatible with the predominant materials to be used in the buildings 
and structures to which it is visually related.   
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12. Roof shapes.  The roof shape of a building shall be visually compatible with the buildings to 
which it is visually related.   

 
 
 
 

13. Walls of continuity.  Building facades and appurtenances such as walls, fences, and landscape 
masses shall, when it is a characteristic of the area, form cohesive walls of enclosure along a 
street to ensure visual compatibility with the buildings, public ways, and places to which such 
elements are visually related.   

 
 
 
 

14. Scale of building.  The size and mass of buildings and structures in relation to open spaces, 
windows, door openings, porches, and balconies shall be visually compatible with the 
buildings, public ways, and places to which they are visually related.   

 
 
 
 

15. Directional expression of front elevation.  The buildings shall be visually compatible with the 
buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related in its directional character, 
whether this be vertical character, horizontal character, or nondirectional character.   

 
 
 
 

16. Special consideration for existing buildings.  For existing buildings, the Plan Commission and 
the Board of Trustees shall consider the availability of materials, technology, and 
craftsmanship to duplicate existing styles, patterns, textures, and overall detailing.   

 

 

 

 

 
REVIEW CRITERIA – Site Plan Review 
 Below are the criteria that will be used by the Plan Commission and Board of Trustees in 

determining is the application does not meet the requirements for Site Plan Approval.  Briefly 
describe how this application will not do the below criteria.  Please respond to each criterion as it 
relates to the application.  Please use an additional sheet of paper to respond to questions if 
needed. 

 
 Section 11-604 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Site Plan Review.  The site plan review 

process recognizes that even those uses and developments that have been determined to be 
generally suitable for location in a particular district are capable of adversely affecting the 
purposes for which this code was enacted unless careful consideration is given to critical design 
elements.   
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1. The site plan fails to adequately meet specified standards required by the Zoning Code with 
respect to the proposed use or development, including special use standards where 
applicable. 

 
  
 

2. The proposed site plan interferes with easements and rights-of-way.   
 
 
 

3. The proposed site plan unreasonably destroys, damages, detrimentally modifies, or interferes 
with the enjoyment of significant natural, topographical, or physical features of the site.   

 
 

 
4. The proposed site plan is unreasonably injurious or detrimental to the use and enjoyment of 

surrounding property. 
 
 

 
5. The proposed site plan creates undue traffic congestion or hazards in the public streets, or the 

circulation elements of the proposed site plan unreasonably creates hazards to safety on or off 
site or disjointed, inefficient pedestrian or vehicular circulation paths on or off the site.   

 
 
 
 
6. The screening of the site does not provide adequate shielding from or for nearby uses. 
 
 
 
 
7. The proposed structures or landscaping are unreasonably lacking amenity in relation to, or are 

incompatible with, nearby structures and uses.   
 
 
 
 

8. In the case of site plans submitted in connection with an application for a special use permit, 
the proposed site plan makes inadequate provision for the creation or preservation of open 
space or for its continued maintenance.  

 
 
 

9. The proposed site plan creates unreasonable drainage or erosion problems or fails to fully and 
satisfactorily integrate the site into the overall existing and planned ordinance system serving 
the community.  
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10. The proposed site plan places unwarranted or unreasonable burdens on specified utility 
systems serving the site or area or fails to fully and satisfactorily integrate the site’s utilities into 
the overall existing and planned utility system serving the Village.   

 
 
 
 

11. The proposed site plan does not provide for required public uses designated on the Official 
Map.  

 
 

 
12. The proposed site plan otherwise adversely affects the public health, safety, or general 

welfare.   
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

NOTICE OF PLAN COMMISSION 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to all persons that the Village of Hinsdale Plan 

Commission shall conduct a public hearing on Wednesday, February 8, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. in the 

Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois for the purpose of considering an 

application from Kensington School, for a Text Amendment to the Zoning Code to Section 7-

305(E), as it relates to child daycare services not limited only to “operation by or for a 

membership organization” in the IB Institutional Buildings District (IB). This notification also 

reflects an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan review (to construct a new building) by the Plan 

Commission since this is a nonresidential use that is within 250 feet from a single family 

residential district. The Subject property is 525-527 W. Ogden Avenue, and known as 

Application A-38-2016.  

 

The petitioner is Mr. Charles Marlas of Kensington Schools. Copies of documents relating to the 

proposed request are on file and available for public inspection during regular Village business 

hours in the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois.   

 

The common address is 525-527 W. Ogden Avenue, Hinsdale IL. 60521 and legally described as 

follows:   

 

LOT 17 IN LOGAN ACRES SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE 

NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF 

THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 

RECORDED AUGUST 17, 1955, AS DOCUMENT 769566 AND CERTIFICATE OF 

CORRECTION FILED JANUARY 20, 1956, AS DOCUMENT 786994 IN DUPAGE 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 

LOT 18 OF LOGAN ACRES SUBDIVISION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE 

NORTHEAST QUARTER OR SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF 

THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 

AUGUST 17, 1955 AS DOCUMENT 769566 AND CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION FILED 

JANUARY 20, 1956 AS DOCUMENT 786994, IN DUGPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 

PIN Numbers:  0902208010 and 0902208011 

 

At said public hearing, the Plan Commission shall accept all testimony and evidence pertaining to 

said applications and shall consider any and all possible zoning actions, including the granting of 

any necessary special permits, variations, other special approvals, or amendments to the Zoning 

Code that may be necessary or convenient to permit development of the proposed type at the 

described property. All interested persons are invited to attend and be heard. 

 

Dated:  January 17, 2017   

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk                 

 

To be published in the Hinsdalean on January 19, 2017 

Attachment 4



Tit
le 

Sh
ee

t
6

0
3

0
5

HA
GU

E A
RC

HI
TE

CT
UR

E
R

IV
E
R

 F
O

R
E
S

T
, 
IL

L
IN

O
IS

7
0

8
.7

7
1

.3
9

0
0

4
1

8
 C

L
IN

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

JA
N

UA
RY

 2
01

7

ILL
IN

OI
S

HI
NS

DA
LE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 SC

HO
OL

A-0
1

PR
OP

OS
ED

 KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 SC

HO
OL

HI
NS

DA
LE

, IL
LIN

OI
S

TA
BL

E O
F C

ON
TE

NT
S:

A-0
1 T

ITL
E S

HE
ET

A-0
2 F

IR
ST

 FL
OO

R P
LA

N
A-0

3 E
XT

ER
IO

R I
MA

GE
S

A-0
4 E

XT
ER

IO
R E

LE
VA

TIO
NS

A-0
5 P

RO
DU

CT
S &

 EX
TE

RI
OR

 M
AT

ER
IAL

S
A-0

6 P
RO

DU
CT

S &
 EX

TE
RI

OR
 M

AT
ER

IAL

Attachment 4



D
W

R
E

F
C

O
P

IE
R

(IN
FA

N
T

 S
LE

E
P

IN
G

) H
W

H

FI
R

E
 A

S
S

E
M

B
LY

R
O

O
F

H
A

T
C

H

R
E

F

CLOSET

C
LO

S
E

T
C

LO
S

E
T

10
2

C
O

M
M

O
N

 A
R

E
A

10
1

V
E

S
T

IB
U

LE

10
3

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R
10

3

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

10
4

O
FF

IC
E

10
5

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

10
6

C
LO

S
E

T

10
7

C
O

T
S

10
8

C
O

A
T

S

10
9

T
O

IL
E

T
 R

M

11
0

C
LA

S
S

R
O

O
M

11
1

C
LA

S
S

R
O

O
M

11
3

C
O

A
T

S

11
2

C
O

T
S

11
4

T
O

IL
E

T
 R

M

11
5

C
LA

S
S

R
O

O
M

11
6

C
O

A
T

S
11

7

C
O

T
S

11
8

T
O

IL
E

T
 R

M

11
9

C
LA

S
S

R
O

O
M

12
0

C
O

A
T

S
12

1

T
O

IL
E

T
 R

M

12
2

C
LA

S
S

R
O

O
M

12
3

C
O

T
S

12
5

C
O

A
T

S

12
4

T
O

IL
E

T
 R

M

12
6

E
X

E
R

C
IS

E
 R

M
P

LA
T

FO
R

M

CLOSET

13
0

C
O

T
S

13
2

C
O

A
T

S

12
9

C
LA

S
S

R
O

O
M

12
8

T
O

IL
. R

M
.

12
7

T
O

IL
. R

M
.

M
E

N
W

O
M

E
N

13
1

T
O

IL
E

T
 R

M

13
3

C
LA

S
S

R
O

O
M

13
5

C
O

A
T

S

13
4

13
6

W
A

T
E

R
 / 

V
A

LV
E

 R
M

13
7

E
LE

C
 R

M
13

8

U
T

IL
IT

Y 13
9

B
R

E
A

K
 R

M
14

0

C
LO

S
E

T

14
1

P
A

N
T

R
Y

14
2

K
IT

C
H

E
N

14
3

C
LA

S
S

R
O

O
M

14
6

T
O

IL
E

T
 R

M
14

4

C
O

A
T

S
14

5

C
O

T
S

14
7

C
LA

S
S

R
O

O
M

14
9

C
O

A
T

S

15
0

C
O

T
S

14
8

T
O

IL
E

T
 R

M

E
LE

C
M

E
T

E
R

E
LE

C
M

A
IN

W
/D

IS
C

O
N

N
E

C
T

M
E

T
E

R
G

A
S

W
A

T
E

R
 M

E
T

E
R

W
S

H
/D

R
Y

MOP RACK

U
T

IL
 S

IN
K

B
R

O
O

M
 R

A
C

K

IR
R

IG
 A

S
S

.

10
3

C
O

R
R

ID
O

R

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

PL
AN

SC
AL

E:
 1

/1
6"

 =
 1

'-0
"

01

6
0

3
0

5

HA
GU

E A
RC

HI
TE

CT
UR

E
R

IV
E
R

 F
O

R
E
S

T
, 
IL

L
IN

O
IS

7
0

8
.7

7
1

.3
9

0
0

4
1

8
 C

L
IN

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

JA
N

UA
RY

 2
01

7

ILL
IN

OI
S

HI
NS

DA
LE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 SC

HO
OL

A-0
2

Fir
st 

Flo
or 

Pla
n

Attachment 4



6
0

3
0

5

HA
GU

E A
RC

HI
TE

CT
UR

E
R

IV
E
R

 F
O

R
E
S

T
, 
IL

L
IN

O
IS

7
0

8
.7

7
1

.3
9

0
0

4
1

8
 C

L
IN

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

JA
N

UA
RY

 2
01

7

ILL
IN

OI
S

HI
NS

DA
LE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 SC

HO
OL

A-0
3

Ex
ter

ior
 Im

ag
es

Attachment 4



M
OD

UL
AR

 F
AC

E 
BR

IC
K

TO
 B

E 
SE

LE
CT

ED
 B

Y 
OW

N
ER

EL
: +

0'
-0

"
T/

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

SL
AB

EL
: -

0'
-6

"
T/

GR
AD

E

12

10

W
IN

DO
W

S 
W

IT
H 

W
OO

D 
TR

IM
M

OU
LD

IN
G 

FO
R 

PA
IN

T

DE
CO

RA
TI

VE
 M

ET
AL

 F
AS

CI
A 

TR
IM

,
SO

FF
IT

, G
UT

TE
R,

 A
N

D 
M

OU
LD

IN
G

B/
TR

US
S

EL
: +

12
'-0

"

B/
M

AN
SA

RD
 F

RA
M

IN
G

EL
: +

14
'-0

"

EL
: +

22
'-8

"
T/

RO
OF

 R
ID

GE

SY
N

TH
ET

IC
 S

LA
TE

 S
HI

N
GL

ES
TY

PI
CA

L 
AT

 M
AN

SA
RD

 R
OO

F
RT

U 
AT

 F
LA

T 
RO

OF
 T

O 
BE

SC
RE

EN
ED

 B
Y 

M
AN

SA
RD

 R
OO

F
AT

 A
LL

 F
OU

R 
SI

DE
S,

 T
YP

.

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

EL
EC

 M
ET

ER
 B

OX

M
OD

UL
AR

 F
AC

E 
BR

IC
K

TO
 B

E 
SE

LE
CT

ED
 B

Y 
OW

N
ER

12

10

W
IN

DO
W

S 
W

IT
H 

W
OO

D 
TR

IM
M

OU
LD

IN
G 

FO
R 

PA
IN

T

SY
N

TH
ET

IC
 S

LA
TE

 S
HI

N
GL

ES
TY

PI
CA

L 
AT

 M
AN

SA
RD

 R
OO

F
RT

U 
AT

 F
LA

T 
RO

OF
 T

O 
BE

SC
RE

EN
ED

 B
Y 

M
AN

SA
RD

 R
OO

F
AT

 A
LL

 F
OU

R 
SI

DE
S,

 T
YP

.

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

EL
: +

0'
-0

"
T/

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

SL
AB

EL
: -

0'
-6

"
T/

GR
AD

E

B/
TR

US
S

EL
: +

12
'-0

"

B/
M

AN
SA

RD
 F

RA
M

IN
G

EL
: +

14
'-0

"

EL
: +

22
'-8

"
T/

RO
OF

 R
ID

GE

EL
: +

0'
-0

"
T/

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

SL
AB

EL
: -

0'
-6

"
T/

GR
AD

E

B/
TR

US
S

EL
: +

12
'-0

"

B/
M

AN
SA

RD
 F

RA
M

IN
G

EL
: +

14
'-0

"

EL
: +

22
'-8

"
T/

RO
OF

 R
ID

GE

2'-0"

SY
N

TH
ET

IC
 S

LA
TE

 S
HI

N
GL

ES
TY

PI
CA

L 
AT

 M
AN

SA
RD

 R
OO

F

W
IN

DO
W

S/
W

AL
LS

 W
IT

H 
W

OO
D 

TR
IM

M
OU

LD
IN

G 
FO

R 
PA

IN
T

12

10

7'-0"

M
OD

UL
AR

 F
AC

E 
BR

IC
K

TO
 B

E 
SE

LE
CT

ED
 B

Y 
OW

N
ER

DE
CO

RA
TI

VE
 M

ET
AL

 F
AS

CI
A 

TR
IM

,
SO

FF
IT

, G
UT

TE
R,

 A
N

D 
M

OU
LD

IN
G

W
OO

D 
TR

IM
 M

OU
LD

IN
G,

W
OO

D 
CO

LU
M

N
S 

FO
R 

PA
IN

T

RT
U 

AT
 F

LA
T 

RO
OF

 T
O 

BE
SC

RE
EN

ED
 B

Y 
M

AN
SA

RD
 R

OO
F

AT
 A

LL
 F

OU
R 

SI
DE

S,
 T

YP
.

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

12

10
12

10

W
IN

DO
W

S 
W

IT
H 

W
OO

D 
TR

IM
M

OU
LD

IN
G 

FO
R 

PA
IN

T

12

12
10

2'-0"7'-0"

M
OD

UL
AR

 F
AC

E 
BR

IC
K

TO
 B

E 
SE

LE
CT

ED
 B

Y 
OW

N
ER

SY
N

TH
ET

IC
 S

LA
TE

 S
HI

N
GL

ES
TY

PI
CA

L 
AT

 M
AN

SA
RD

 R
OO

F
DE

CO
RA

TI
VE

 M
ET

AL
 F

AS
CI

A 
TR

IM
,

SO
FF

IT
, G

UT
TE

R,
 A

N
D 

M
OU

LD
IN

G

W
IN

DO
W

S 
W

IT
H 

W
OO

D 
TR

IM
M

OU
LD

IN
G 

FO
R 

PA
IN

T
W

IN
DO

W
S 

W
IT

H 
W

OO
D 

TR
IM

M
OU

LD
IN

G 
FO

R 
PA

IN
T

W
IN

DO
W

S 
W

IT
H 

W
OO

D 
TR

IM
M

OU
LD

IN
G 

FO
R 

PA
IN

T

12
10

10'-8"

12
10

RT
U 

AT
 F

LA
T 

RO
OF

 T
O 

BE
SC

RE
EN

ED
 B

Y 
M

AN
SA

RD
 R

OO
F

AT
 A

LL
 F

OU
R 

SI
DE

S,
 T

YP
.

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

RT
U 

BE
YO

N
D

2'-0"7'-0"

2'-0"7'-0"

10'-8"

2'-0"7'-0"

10'-8"

EL: +
0'-0"

T/FIRST FLOOR SLAB

EL: -0'-6"
T/GRADE

B/TRUSS
EL: +

12'-0"

B/M
AN

SARD FRAM
IN

G
EL: +

14'-0"

EL: +
22'-8"

T/ROOF RIDGE

8"
 C

UT
 A

LU
M

IN
UM

 L
ET

TE
RS

PA
IN

TE
D 

CO
N

TR
AS

TI
N

G 
CO

LO
R 

(B
LA

CK
)

IN
DI

VI
DU

AL
 L

ET
TE

RS
 S

UR
FA

CE
M

OU
N

TE
D

11
'-0

"

5'-0"

LE
TT

ER
S 

ON
 O

N
E 

SI
DE

 O
F

M
ON

UM
EN

T 
SI

GN

W
OO

D 
PI

ER
S 

& 
SI

GN
 T

O 
M

AT
CH

W
HI

TE
 B

UI
LD

IN
G 

TR
IM

 W
IT

H
M

ET
AL

 C
AP

8"
 &

 6
" B

LA
CK

 C
UT

 A
LU

M
IN

UM
LE

TT
ER

S
IN

DI
VI

DU
AL

 L
ET

TE
RS

 S
UR

FA
CE

M
OU

N
TE

D

6'
-4

"

1'
-4

"

5'-0"

6
0

3
0

5

HA
GU

E A
RC

HI
TE

CT
UR

E
R

IV
E
R

 F
O

R
E
S

T
, 
IL

L
IN

O
IS

7
0

8
.7

7
1

.3
9

0
0

4
1

8
 C

L
IN

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

JA
N

UA
RY

 2
01

7

ILL
IN

OI
S

HI
NS

DA
LE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 SC

HO
OL

A-0
4

Ex
ter

ior
 El

ev
ati

on
s

EA
ST

 E
LE

VA
TI

ON
SC

AL
E:

 1
/1

6"
 =

 1
'-0

"
D

W
ES

T 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

SC
AL

E:
 1

/1
6"

 =
 1

'-0
"

C

N
OR

TH
 E

LE
VA

TI
ON

SC
AL

E:
 1

/1
6"

 =
 1

'-0
"

B

SO
UT

H 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

SC
AL

E:
 1

/1
6"

 =
 1

'-0
"

A

M
ON

UM
EN

T 
SI

GN
SC

AL
E:

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

F

M
ON

UM
EN

T 
SI

GN
SC

AL
E:

 1
/8

" =
 1

'-0
"

G

8"
 C

UT
 A

LU
M

IN
UM

 L
ET

TE
RS

PA
IN

TE
D 

CO
N

TR
AS

TI
N

G 
CO

LO
R 

(B
LA

CK
)

IN
DI

VI
DU

AL
 L

ET
TE

RS
 S

UR
FA

CE
 M

OU
N

TE
D

Attachment 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENSINGTON SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENSINGTON SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENSINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFANTS KINDERGARTEN



6
0

3
0

5

HA
GU

E A
RC

HI
TE

CT
UR

E
R

IV
E
R

 F
O

R
E
S

T
, 
IL

L
IN

O
IS

7
0

8
.7

7
1

.3
9

0
0

4
1

8
 C

L
IN

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

JA
N

UA
RY

 2
01

7

ILL
IN

OI
S

HI
NS

DA
LE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 SC

HO
OL

A-0
5

Pro
du

cts
 &

 Ex
ter

ior
 M

ate
ria

ls

RO
OF

 M
AT

ER
IA

L
M

FG
: 

CE
RT

AI
N

TE
ED

GR
AN

D 
M

AN
OR

 - 
GA

TE
HO

US
E 

SL
AT

E

EX
TE

RI
OR

 B
UI

LD
IN

G 
LI

GH
T 

FI
XT

UR
E:

M
FG

:E
F 

CH
AP

M
AN

M
ED

IU
M

 S
US

SE
X 

LA
TE

RN
CH

O2
03

2 
- B

RO
N

ZE

EX
TE

RI
OR

 P
AR

KI
N

G 
LO

T 
LI

GH
T 

FI
XT

UR
E:

M
FG

: C
YC

LO
N

E 
-

HI
ST

OR
IA

 P
OS

T 
TO

P
CY

25
T4

 - 
BL

AC
K-

TX
15

'-0
" L

IG
HT

 P
OL

E

EX
TE

RI
OR

 T
RI

M
M

FG
:R

OY
AL

PV
C 

SM
OO

TH
 F

AC
ED

 W
HI

TE
 T

RI
M

EX
TE

RI
OR

 M
ET

AL
 F

AS
CI

A 
& 

GU
TT

ER
DE

CO
RA

TI
VE

 F
AS

CI
A

CO
LO

R 
W

HI
TE

W
IN

DO
W

S 
& 

DO
OR

S:
M

FG
: E

AG
LE

CA
SE

M
EN

T 
W

IN
DO

W
S

PA
TI

O 
DO

OR
S

AL
UM

IN
UM

 C
LA

D 
- C

OL
ON

Y 
W

HI
TE

BR
IC

K:
M

FG
: B

OR
AL

 B
RI

CK
N

EW
 O

RL
EA

N
S 

BR
IC

K 
- M

OD
UL

AR

DO
OR

 H
AR

DW
AR

E
M

ET
AL

 F
IN

IS
H 

 - 
SA

TI
N

 C
HR

OM
E

Attachment 4



6
0

3
0

5

HA
GU

E A
RC

HI
TE

CT
UR

E
R

IV
E
R

 F
O

R
E
S

T
, 
IL

L
IN

O
IS

7
0

8
.7

7
1

.3
9

0
0

4
1

8
 C

L
IN

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

JA
N

UA
RY

 2
01

7

ILL
IN

OI
S

HI
NS

DA
LE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 SC

HO
OL

A-0
6

Pro
du

cts
 &

 Ex
ter

ior
 M

ate
ria

ls

PL
AY

GR
OU

N
D 

EQ
UI

PM
EN

T:
M

FG
: N

UT
OY

S 
LE

IS
UR

E 
PR

OD
UC

TS
LA

N
DS

CA
PE

 F
OR

M
S

EQ
UI

PM
EN

T 
AS

 S
HO

W
N

FE
N

CE
:

M
FG

: D
AN

BU
RY

CO
N

CA
VE

 W
HI

TE
 P

IC
KE

T 
FE

N
CE

GR
OU

N
D 

SI
GN

:
8"

 &
 6

" S
UR

FA
CE

 M
OU

N
TE

D 
BL

AC
K

LE
TT

ER
S

N
ON

 IL
LU

M
IN

AT
ED

W
AL

L 
SI

GN
:

8"
 S

UR
FA

CE
 M

OU
N

TE
D 

BL
AC

K
LE

TT
ER

S
N

ON
 IL

LU
M

IN
AT

ED

ST
OR

AG
E 

SH
ED

:
ST

OR
AG

E 
SH

ED
:

Attachment 4



EL
: +

0'
-0

"
T/

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

SL
AB

EL
: -

0'
-6

"
T/

GR
AD

E

B/
TR

US
S

EL
: +

12
'-0

"

B/
M

AN
SA

RD
 F

RA
M

IN
G

EL
: +

14
'-0

"

EL
: +

22
'-8

"
T/

RO
OF

 R
ID

GEEL
: +

0'
-0

"
T/

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

SL
AB

EL
: -

0'
-6

"
T/

GR
AD

E

B/
TR

US
S

EL
: +

12
'-0

"

B/
M

AN
SA

RD
 F

RA
M

IN
G

EL
: +

14
'-0

"

EL
: +

22
'-8

"
T/

RO
OF

 R
ID

GE

EL
: +

0'
-0

"
T/

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

SL
AB

EL
: -

0'
-6

"
T/

GR
AD

E

B/
TR

US
S

EL
: +

12
'-0

"

B/
M

AN
SA

RD
 F

RA
M

IN
G

EL
: +

14
'-0

"

EL
: +

22
'-8

"
T/

RO
OF

 R
ID

GE

EL: +
0'-0"

T/FIRST FLOOR SLAB

EL: -0'-6"
T/GRADE

B/TRUSS
EL: +

12'-0"

B/M
AN

SARD FRAM
IN

G
EL: +

14'-0"

EL: +
22'-8"

T/ROOF RIDGE

6
0

3
0

5

HA
GU

E A
RC

HI
TE

CT
UR

E
R

IV
E
R

 F
O

R
E
S

T
, 

IL
L
IN

O
IS

7
0

8
.7

7
1

.3
9

0
0

4
1

8
 C

L
IN

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

JA
N

UA
RY

 2
01

7

ILL
IN

OI
S

HI
NS

DA
LE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 SC

HO
OL

A-0
4

Ex
ter

ior
 El

ev
ati

on
s

EA
ST

 E
LE

VA
TI

ON
SC

AL
E:

 1
/1

6"
 =

 1
'-0

"
D

W
ES

T 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

SC
AL

E:
 1

/1
6"

 =
 1

'-0
"

C

N
OR

TH
 E

LE
VA

TI
ON

SC
AL

E:
 1

/1
6"

 =
 1

'-0
"

B

SO
UT

H 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

SC
AL

E:
 1

/1
6"

 =
 1

'-0
"

A

Attachment 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENSINGTON SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
KENSINGTON SCHOOL



Attachment 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   March 8, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Text Amendment Co-Application to Add Tutoring and Curriculum Development as a 

Special Use in O-2 District  
Concurrent Special Use Permit Application for TinkRworks at 21 W. Second Street 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received a co-application packet from TinkRworks and Stec Educational 

Group, requesting approval for a Text Amendment to allow tutoring and educational curriculum 

development (SIC code 8299), with a Special Use permit in the O-2 District. Currently, only music schools 

(SIC code 8299) are permitted in the O-2 with an approved special use permit. This request will amend 

Section 6-106(B)(7), to allow tutoring and  educational curriculum development, with a Special Use 

permit in the O-2 District. 

On February 8, 2017, the Plan Commission (PC) unanimously approved to schedule the public hearing 

for March 8, 2017, to review the co-application for the Text Amendment request and individual Special 

Use Permit applications for TinkRworks at 21 W. Second Street (Case A-26-16) and Stec Group at 534 

Chestnut Street (Case A-33-16).  

Request and Analysis 

TinkrWorks plans to utilize 3,000 SF on the third floor in the office building at 21 W. Second Street for 

two classrooms and a common area. US Bank is currently the only tenant and occupies the first two 

floors. The applicant has a steady-rate goal for 200 unique students by year 3. However, the maximum 

number of students at one time will be 25. The maximum staff on site will be 5. The applicant has noted 

that there is no additional room to expand in the building. The subject property is located in the O-2 

District and borders the O-2 District to the west and north, IB Institutional Buildings District to the south, 

and B-2 Central Business District of the east.  

TinkRworks offers after school programs beginning at 3:45 PM to 1st to 8th graders (ages 6 to 14) three 

days a week on Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday. At this time slot, only a single class of a maximum of 

12 students will be held. All other classes will begin at 5:15 PM or later during weekdays. Some courses 

offered include computer programming, graphic design and robotics. TinkRworks advertises a guarantee 

of an instructor-to-student ratio of 1:6 or better. 
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Parking for the Special Use permit is Code compliant. TinkRworks will have 5 dedicated spaces at the 21 

W. Second Street parking lot. Based on the use categories of Section 9-104(J), “elementary schools” is 

the most relevant to tutoring educational services and references students. Given, the parking 

requirement for TinkRworks is 3 spaces calculated by 1 space per each 2 employees, or 1 for each 15 

students, whichever is greater. Please note, at the January 24, 2017, Board meeting, some Trustees 

requested additional discussion on parking, as it relates to the intensity of the use. 

Stec Educational Group applied for the same Text Amendment request to allow tutoring in the O-2 

District, at 534 Chestnut Street a month after TinkRworks. However, the public hearing at PC was 

formally closed without discussion after confirming a Text Amendment would be necessary. To that end, 

TinkRworks and the Stec Group are applying together for the same Text Amendment and concurrently 

with their individual Special Use Permits. 534 Chestnut Street is located in the O-2 District and borders 

the R-4 District to the west and north, BNSF railroad to the south, and O-2 Central Business District to 

the east.  

TinkRworks presented at the November 9, 2016, PC public hearing for a special use permit application. 

The PC concluded at its December 14, 2016 meeting, that while tutoring falls under the same SIC Code 

as music schools, tutoring should be specifically listed as a special use under Section 6-106(B)(7). Thus, 

TinkRworks and Stec Group have applied together for a Text Amendment to allow tutoring and 

educational curriculum development (SIC code 8299), with a Special Use permit in the O-2 District.  

A public notification was completed for the November 9, 2016, PC public hearing to review the 

TinkRworks initial tutoring Special Use permit application. Staff did not receive any inquiries and there 

were no public comments at the PC hearing. However, Trustee Saigh had concerns for the use due to its 

proximity to a residential district, parking requirements, and difficult intersection. Trustee Saigh also felt 

a text amendment is necessary for the application to move forward.   

On January 24, 2017, both applicants presented the application to the Board of Trustees (BOT). In 

general, the Board was comfortable referring it to the PC for review. However, a few Trustees requested 

that the PC discuss the intensity of the use. For example, how many students per hour are 

attending/dismissed. Additional discussion should focus on parking, as it relates to the intensity. The 

Board feels this is necessary since the parking requirements reflect a typical secondary school versus a 

tutoring use.  

Process 

Pursuant to Section 11-602, a public hearing shall be set, noticed and conducted by the PC in accordance 

with Section 11-303.  Within 45 days following the conclusion of the public hearing, the PC shall transmit 

to the BOT its recommendation, in the form specified in subsection 11-103(H) of this article, 

recommending either approval, approval subject to conditions or disapproval of the special use permit 

based on the standards set forth in section 11-602(E). 
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Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Text Amendment/Special Use Application- TinkRworks - Case A-26-16 
 
The following related materials were provided for the January 24, 2017, Board meeting and can be 

found on the Village website at: 

www.villageofhinsdale.org/document_center/VillageBoard/2017/JAN/170124%20VBOT%20packet.pdf 

-  Zoning Map and Project Location 
-  Street View of 21 W. Second St. 
-  Aerial Parcel Map of 21 W. Second St. 
-  November 9, 2016, PC Meeting Transcript 
-  Trustee Saigh Email to Staff (dated Oct. 28, and Nov.09, 2016) 
-  SIC Code Definitions for Schools and Educational Services (8299) 
-  O-2 District Permitted Use and Special Uses, with Zoning Map of O-2 Districts 
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Must be accompanied by completed Plan Commission Application 
 

Is this a:   Map Amendment  Text Amendment 
 
Address of the subject property  
 
Description of the proposed request:  
 
REVIEW CRITERIA 
  
Section 11-601 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Amendments.  The amendment process 
established is intended to provide a means for making changes in the text of the Zoning Code and in 
the zoning map that have more or less general significance or application.  It is not intended to relieve 
particular hardships nor to confer special privileges or rights.  Rather, it is intended as a tool to adjust 
the provisions of the Zoning Code and the zoning map in light of changing, newly discovered, or 
newly important conditions, situations, or knowledge.  The wisdom of amending the text of the Zoning 
Code is a matter committed to the sound legislative discretion of the Board of Trustees and is not 
dictated by any set standard.  However, in determining whether a proposed amendment should be 
granted or denied the Board of Trustees should be guided by the principle that its power to amend 
this Code is not an arbitrary one but one that may be exercised only when the public good demands 
or requires the amendment to be made.  In considering whether that principle is satisfied in any 
particular case, the Board of Trustees should weigh, among other factors, the below criteria. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. The consistency of the proposed amendment with the purpose of this Code.   

 
  
 

  
2. The existing uses and zoning classifications for properties in the vicinity of the subject property.   

  

 
3. The trend of development in the vicinity of the subject property, including changes, if any, such 

trend since the subject property was placed in its present zoning classification.   
 
 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
DEPARTMENT 
ZONING CODE TEXT AND MAP  
AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
 

Below are the 14 standards for amendments that will be the criteria used by the Plan Commission 
and Board of Trustees in determining the merits of this application.  Please respond to each 
standard as it relates to the application.  Please use an additional sheet of paper to respond to 
questions if needed.  If the standard is not applicable, please mark N/A. 
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Full Responses to Questions 1, 6, 9, 10 and 13 can be found after page 3 of this application.
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4. The extent, if any, to which the value of the subject property is diminished by the existing zoning 
classification applicable to it.   

 
 
 
 
5. The extent to which any such diminution in value is offset by an increase in the public health, 

safety, and welfare.    
 
 
 
 
6. The extent, if any, to which the use and enjoyment of adjacent properties would be affected by 

the proposed amendment.  
 

 

7. The extent, if any, to which the value of adjacent properties would be affected by the proposed 
amendment.  

 
 
 
8. The extent, if any, to which the future orderly development of adjacent properties would be 

affected by the proposed amendment.  
 
 
 
 
9. The suitability of the subject property for uses permitted or permissible under its present zoning 

classification.   
 
 
 
 
10. The availability of adequate ingress to and egress from the subject property and the extent to 

which traffic conditions in the immediate vicinity of the subject property would be affected by the 
proposed amendment.  

 
 
 
 
11. The availability of adequate utilities and essential public services to the subject property to 

accommodate the uses permitted or permissible under the present zoning classification. 
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12. The length of time, if any, that the subject property has been vacant, considered in the context of 
the pace of development in the vicinity of the subject property.   

 
 
 
 
 
13. The community need for the proposed amendment and for the uses and development it would 

allow.   
 
 
 
 
14. The reasons, where relevant, why the subject property should be established as part of an 

overlay district and the positive and negative effects such establishment could be expected to 
have on persons residing in the area.   

 

Attachment 1

cyu
Text Box
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1.  The consistency of the proposed amendment with the purpose of this Code. 

The proposed amendment seeks to add "Tutoring Service" and "Curriculum development, educational" 

to the Code which we believe to be aligned to the spirit of the Code.  Current Code allows music schools, 

e.g., School of Rock (located one block away), with Special Use Permit to operate in the same location.  

School of Rock currently operates under SIC code 8299; we are seeking to expand within this 8299 

category by adding the two cited items above to the Code. 

 

6.  The extent, if any, to which the use and enjoyment of adjacent properties would be affected by the 

proposed amendment. 

N/A--our proposed property is on the 3rd floor of the US Bank Building.  Direct elevator access to our 

facilities is available, so the bank would not be disturbed with our clients entering their premises.  

Additionally, activities we perform would be such that noise levels would be minimal, thereby not 

affecting the existing bank tenant.  With School of Rock around the corner, we feel that a facility offering 

educational services in the form of robotics, coding, etc. would be a terrific complement to educational 

offerings (which include music) in the area. 

 

9.  The suitability of the subject property for uses permitted or permissible under its present zoning 

classification. 

Based on our understanding, we must attain a Special Use Permit under O-2 to operate, which currently 

is not in place.  We anticipate that the classes we plan to teach will be less intensive as compared to a 

music school in that the noise levels will be far lower.  Our classes will specialize in teaching coding, 

robotics, and 3D printing to children within our community.  Children will also do artwork (e.g. 

coloring/painting).  These activities will be relatively quiet in nature and we do not anticipate they will 

audibly disturb the existing tenant in our building nor tenants in buildings nearby. 

 

10.  The availability of adequate ingress to and egress from the subject property and the extent to 

which traffic conditions in the immediate vicinity of the subject property would be affected by the 

proposed amendment.   

Very slight increase in traffic prior to 5pm but minimal as best as our classes primarily plan to start at 

5pm or later, after the bank closes and after permit parking ends.  As a result, especially when coupled 

with public parking a block from our facilities, numerous parking opportunities would exist and traffic 

increases to the area are likely to be light. 

 

Text Amendment Application TinkRworks Attachment 1



13.  The community need for the proposed amendment and for the uses and development it would 

allow.    

STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art, Math)-based skills are in high-demand as every corner of 

the economy is being affected by technology. As we propose to provide STEAM-based projects to 

children within our community, for the first time, they will have an opportunity to learn about robotics, 

coding, and electronics, and will have the chance to bring their school learnings to life reinforcing what 

they learn in school.  Parents have recognized this need and are excited to have an after-school service 

that promotes these skills in their children close to home. 

Text Amendment Application TinkRworks Attachment 1
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

NOTICE OF PLAN COMMISSION 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to all persons that the Village of Hinsdale 

Plan Commission shall conduct a public hearing on Wednesday, November 9, 2016, at 

7:30 p.m. in the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois for the 

purpose of considering a Special Use application to allow educational tutoring services in 

the O-2 Limited Office District. The applicant plans to occupy approximately 3,000 

square feet in the 3-story, 12,927 SF office building at 21 W. Second Street. 

 

The petitioner is: Aaditya “Anu” Mahajan, TinkRworks, LLC. Copies of documents 

relating to the proposed request are on file and available for public inspection during 

regular Village business hours in the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, 

Hinsdale, Illinois.   

 

PARCEL 1:  THE SOUTH 25 FEET OF LOT 6 AND ALL OF LOT 7 IN BLOCK 4 IN 

THE TOWN OF HINSDALE, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE NORTHWEST ¼ 

(EXCEPT RAILROAD LANDS) OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 

11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 

THEREOF RECORDED AUGUST 14, 1866 AS DOCUMENT 7738, IN DUPAGE 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 

PARCEL 2:  ALL OF LOT 8 AND THE SOUTH 5 FEET OF LOT 9 IN WRIGHT’S 

SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 TO 4 AND THE NORTH 41 FEET OF LOTS 5 AND 6 IN 

BLOCK 4 OF THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF HINSDALE, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF 

THE NORTHWEST ¼ (EXCEPT RAILROAD LANDS) OF SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 

38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SAID WRIGHT’S SUBDIVISION RECORDED ON 

NOVEMBER 15, 1892, AS DOCUMENT 50440, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

P.I.N.    09-12-122-007 and 09-12-122-006 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS:   21 W. SECOND STREET 
                                                HINSDALE, IL 60521 

 

At said public hearing, the Plan Commission shall accept all testimony and evidence 

pertaining to said application and shall consider any and all possible zoning actions, 

including the granting of any necessary special permits, variations, other special 

approvals, or amendments to the Zoning Code that may be necessary or convenient to 

permit development of the proposed type at the described property. All interested persons 

are invited to attend and be heard. 

 

Dated:  October 20, 2016 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 

To be Published in the Hinsdalean on October 20, 2016 

TinkRworks Attachment 1



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 

 

 

 

TinkRworks Attachment 1



 
St

re
e

t 
V

ie
w

 o
f 

21
 W

. S
e

co
n

d
 S

t.
 (l

o
o

ki
n

g 
n

o
rt

h
) 

   

                 

TinkRworks Attachment 1



 
 St

re
e

t 
V

ie
w

 o
f 

21
 W

. S
e

co
n

d
 S

t.
  (

at
 S

. L
in

co
ln

 S
t.

 a
n

d
 W

. S
e

co
n

d
 S

t.
) 

 

   

                 

TinkRworks Attachment 1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   March 8, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  534 Chestnut Street – Stec Educational Group LLC – Case A-33-16 

Special Use Permit Application for Educational Services in the O-2 Limited Office District  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Ms. Christine Stec, owner of Stec Educational 

Group LLC, requesting approval for a Special Use Permit to allow educational tutoring services in the O-2 

Limited Office District. The applicant will occupy 1,000 square feet (SF) in the 2-story office building at 

534 Chestnut Street. In addition to one-on-one  tutoring, small classes of up to 8 students will be offered 

for high school students for ACT and SAT preparation. The tenant space is located at the south end of 

the building with its own entrance.    

On February 8, 2017, the Plan Commission (PC) unanimously approved to schedule the public hearing 

for March 8, 2017, to review the co-application for the Text Amendment request and individual Special 

Use Permit applications for TinkRworks at 21 W. Second Street (Case A-26-16) and Stec Group at 534 

Chestnut Street (Case A-33-16).  

Request and Analysis 

Stec Educational Group is operated by a single person, the owner, Ms. Stec. The majority of the 

educational services will be provided through one-on-one tutoring for 1 to 2 hour sessions. However, 

small group lessons with a maximum of 8 students will also be offered during standardized testing 

periods for the ACT and SAT. Tutoring and group lessons will average from 3 to 5 times per day. 

Parking for the Special Use permit is Code compliant.  Per the lease, Stec Educational Group will have full 

use of the 75 parking spaces at the 534 Chestnut Street parking lot. Based on the use categories of 

Section 9-104(J), “Secondary schools” is the most relevant to high school tutoring educational services. 

To that end, the parking requirement for Stec Educational Group is 3 spaces; this is calculated for 1 

space per each 5 students plus 1 for each employee.  

The project site is located in the O-2 Limited Office District and borders the R-4 Single Family Residential 

District to the west and north, O-2 to the east, and BNSF train tracks and Open Space District to the 

south. Per the Code, the O-2 Limited Office District is designed to provide for the general needs of 
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business and professional offices and related business uses on smaller sites in scattered areas 

throughout the village. Bulk and height regulations encourage development that is architecturally 

consistent with smaller sites and compatible with nearby residential uses. There are no requested 

changes to the building by the applicant. 

Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Text Amendment/Special Use Application - Stec Educational Group – Case A-33-16 
 

The following related materials were provided for the January 24, 2017, Board meeting and can be 

found on the Village website at: 

www.villageofhinsdale.org/document_center/VillageBoard/2017/JAN/170124%20VBOT%20packet.pdf 

-  Zoning Map and Project Location 
-  Street View of 21 W. Second St. 
-  Aerial Parcel Map of 21 W. Second St. 
-  November 9, 2016, PC Meeting Transcript 
-  Trustee Saigh Email to Staff (dated Oct. 28, and Nov.09, 2016) 
-  SIC Code Definitions for Schools and Educational Services (8299) 
-  O-2 District Permitted Use and Special Uses, with Zoning Map of O-2 Districts 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

NOTICE OF PLAN COMMISSION 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to all persons that the Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission shall conduct a public hearing 

on Wednesday, March 8, 2017, at 7:30 p.m. in the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois for the purpose of 

considering a Text Amendment and Special Use application to allow educational tutoring services in the O-2 Limited Office District. 

The applicant plans to occupy 1,000 square feet in the 2-story office building at 534 Chestnut Street. 

 

The petitioner is: Christine Stec, Stec Educational Group, LLC. Copies of documents relating to the proposed request are on file and 

available for public inspection during regular Village business hours in the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, 

Illinois.   

 

THAT  PART OF LOT 6 BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE WEST LINE OF 

SAID  LOT  6,   127.59  FEET  SOUTH   OF  THE   NORTHWEST   CORNER  OF   SAID   LOT  6;   THENCE 

NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 6, A DISTANCE OF 

17.43 FEET TO THE FACE OF A  ONE STORY BRICK BUILDING; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID 

FACE OF A ONE STORY BRICK BUILDING, 24.64 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID  LOT  

6,  0.25 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF THE SOUTHEAST  CORNER OF SAID  LOT  6;  THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 

TO  THE SOUTHWEST  CORNER OF SAID  LOT 6;  THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST  LINE  OF  SAID  

LOT  6 TO  THE PLACE  OF BEGINNING,  ALSO  LOTS  7,   8,  9,   10  AND  11  IN STOUGH'S  SUBDIVISION OF 

BLOCK 8  OF STOUGH'S  SECOND ADDITION  TO HINSDALE, IN THE EAST 1/2  OF SECTION 11,  TOWNSHIP  38  

NORTH, RANGE 11,  EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF OF 

SAID  STOUGH'S  SUBDIVISION  RECORDED APRIL  26,  1883 AS DOCUMENT  31798; ALSO  LOTS  3 AND  4  

(EXCEPT  THE WEST  134  FEET THEREOF) IN  BLOCK  8 IN STOUGH'S  SECOND  ADDITION  TO  

HINSDALE,   IN  THE  EAST   1/2  OF  SECTION   11,  TOWNSHIP   38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD 

PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JUNE  11,  1888 AS DOCUMENT  NO.  

9632, ALSO  THE VACATED ALLEY RUNNING  NORTH AND   SOUTH  IN  BLOCK  8 OF  STOUGH'S  SECOND  

ADDITION  AFORESAID, EXTENDING  FROM  THE SOUTH LINE OF CHESTNUT STREET TO THE NORTH 

LINE OF RAILROAD  STREET AND LOCATED  IN THE NORTHEAST  1/4 OF SECTION  11,  TOWNSHIP  38  

NORTH, RANGE  11,  EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, AND  VACATED  BY  ORDINANCE  

RECORDED APRIL 25,  1957 AS  DOCUMENT  NO.  840146; ALSO  THAT  PART  OF  THE VACATED

 STREET KNOWN  AND  ESTABLISHED  AS RAILROAD STREET EXTENDING FROM THE 

WEST LINE OF MADISON STREET TO THE EAST LINE OF LOT  3 OF BLOCK 8 OF STOUGH'S SECOND 

ADDITION TO HINSDALE  IN THE NORTHEAST  1/4 OF SECTION  11, TOWNSHIP  38 

NORTH,   RANGE  11,  EAST   OF  THE  THIRD  PRINCIPAL  MERIDIAN, AND   VACATED   BY  ORDINANCE 

RECORDED  APRIL  25,   1957 AS  DOCUMENT   NO.   840146,  LYING  WESTERLY  OF  THE  FOLLOWING 

DESCRIBED LINE:  BEGINNING  AT  A  POINT  ON  THE NORTHERLY LINE  OF SAID  VACATED RAILROAD 

STREET, 146.50 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY  OF THE NORTHEAST  CORNER OF SAID  VACATED  RAILROAD 

STREET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY  TO A POINT  ON THE CENTER LINE OF SAID  VACATED RAILROAD 

STREET, 137.25 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID VACATED RAILROAD  STREET (AS 

MEASURED  ALONG  SAID  CENTER LINE OF VACATED RAILROAD  STREET); THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY TO  

A  POINT THAT  IS  128  FEET SOUTHWESTERLY  OF THE SOUTHEAST  CORNER OF SAID  VACATED 

RAILROAD  STREET, (EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT  PART LYING NORTHERLY  AND  EASTERLY OF THE 

FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LINE: COMMENCING AT A POINT ON THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH LINE 

OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 8 IN STOUGH'S SECOND ADDITION  TO HINSDALE,  BEING A  SUBDIVISION  IN THE 

EAST 1/2 OF SEC 11, TOWNSHIP  38 NORTH, RANGE  11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JUNE  11,  1868 AS DOCUMENT  9632, AND THE EAST LINE 

OF THE WEST 134 FEET OF SAID LOT 4,  SAID POINT BEING ALSO ON THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE 

OF CHESTNUT  STREET; THENCE SOUTH  89  DEGREES 57  MINUTES  21  SECONDS  EAST  ALONG THE 

NORTH LINE OF LOT  4,  BEING ALSO  SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY  LINE OF CHESTNUT  STREET, A 

DISTANCE  OF 122.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF SAID  LINE: THENCE SOUTH  00  DEGREES 42  

MINUTES  19 SECONDS EAST  ALONG A LINE FOR A DISTANCE  OF 208.81 FEET TO A POINT 31.50 FEET 

NORTHWESTERLY  OF, AS  MEASURED  AT  RIGHT  ANGLES  TO THE NORTHWESTERLY  RIGHT  OF WAY  

LINE OF THE CHICAGO,  BURLINGTON AND  QUINCY RAILROAD, SAID  RIGHT OF WAY  LINE BEING ALSO  

THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY  LINE EXTENDED SOUTHWESTERLY  OF RAILROAD  STREET IN  

STOUGH'S SUBDIVISION  OF BLOCK  8 OF STOUGH'S  SECOND ADDITION TO  HINSDALE, BEING  A 

SUBDIVISION   IN  THE  EAST  1/2  OF SECTION  11,  TOWNSHIP   38  NORTH,  RANGE  11,  EAST  OF  THE 

THIRD  PRINCIPAL  MERIDIAN, ACCORDING  TO  THE  PLAT  THEREOF RECORDED  APRIL  26,   1883 AS 

DOCUMENT  31798 (SO RAILROAD  STREET VACATED  PER DOCUMENT   840146); THENCE NORTH  74 

DEGREES  35   MINUTES   28   SECONDS   EAST   ALONG   A   LINE   PARALLEL   WITH   AND   31.50  FEET 
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NORTHWESTERLY FROM SAID  NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY  LINE OF THE CHICAGO, BURLINGTON 

AND  QUINCY RAILROAD,  SAIDSOUTHEASTERLY  RIGHT OF WAY  LINE EXTENDED SOUTHWESTERLY OF 

VACATED  RAILROAD   STREET,  AND   SAID   SOUTHEASTERLY   RIGHT  OF  WAY   LINE  OF  VACATED 

RAILROAD  STREET, FOR A DISTANCE  OF  171.68 FEET; THENCE SOUTH  15 DEGREES 24  MINUTES  32 

SECONDS   EAST   ALONG   A    LINE   FOR  A    DISTANCE   OF   31.50  FEET  TO   A    POINT   ON   SAID 

NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY  LINE OF THE CHICAGO,  BURLINGTON AND QUINCY RAILROAD, SAID 

POINT BEING ALSO  ON SAID  SOUTHEASTERLY  RIGHT OF WAY  LINE OF VACATED RAILROAD  STREET 

AND THE POINT OF TERMINATION OF THE AFORESAID.LINE, ALL IN DU PAGE COUNTY,  ILLINOIS. 

P.I.N.     09-11-214-021 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS:   534 Chestnut Street 
                                                HINSDALE, IL 60521 
 

At said public hearing, the Plan Commission shall accept all testimony and evidence pertaining to said application and shall consider 

any and all possible zoning actions, including the granting of any necessary special permits, variations, other special approvals, or 

amendments to the Zoning Code that may be necessary or convenient to permit development of the proposed type at the described 

property. All interested persons are invited to attend and be heard. 

 

Dated:  February 14, 2017 

 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 

 

To be Published in the Hinsdalean on February 16, 2017 
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Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   March 8, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  17 W. Maple St. – Case A-01-2017 – Unitarian Church of Hinsdale (education building) 

Exterior Appearance for new Windows and Roof Solar Panels  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an Exterior Appearance review application from Mr. Benjamin 

Horne, on behalf of the Unitarian Church of Hinsdale (Church) requesting approval to replace existing 

aluminum windows with new double-glazed aluminum windows with a different color (dark bronze) and 

add solar panels to the roof of the building. The Church is located at 17 W. Maple Street in the IB 

Institutional Buildings District. 

Request and Analysis 

The Church’s Religious Education Building is located on the corner of N. Lincoln Street and W. Maple 

Street. It is a two-story red brick building with aluminum grey colored windows. The applicant is 

proposing to replace the existing windows with new double-glazed aluminum dark bronze colored 

windows.  The new windows will not project further than the existing ones, and there will not be any 

additional windows. 

The building features two rooflines, with the majority of the building with a flat roof. On the west end of 

the building, facing the corner of Lincoln St. and Maple St., is a ridged roof forming a gable at both ends 

of the building. The ridged roof line height is 21 feet, 5 ½ inches, and approximately 6 feet higher than 

the top of the flat roof. The proposed solar panels will only be installed on the flat roof of the building. 

The height of the solar panels are 1.23 feet. But given that the panels are mounted on an angle, they will 

be visible from grade.  

A site line diagram has been submitted, illustrating that a 6-foot tall person would see the solar panel at 

approximately 75 feet away. The closest row of solar panels is 4 feet, 10 inches from the edge of the 

roof facing Maple Street. The request plans for 7 rows of solar panels total.   

The public meeting notice requirements have been followed per section 11-604(E), since the 

nonresidential parcel is within 250 feet from a single-family zoning district. It abuts the R-4 Single Family 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Residential District to the north and west, the IB to the east, and O-1 Specialty Office District to the 

south. 

Process 

Pursuant to Section 11-606, the Chairman of the Plan Commission (PC) shall at the public meeting on the 

application for exterior appearance review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, 

material and nonrepetitive comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the 

public meeting, the PC shall transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the form specified 

in subsection 11-103(H) of this article, recommending either approval or disapproval of the exterior 

appearance and site plan based on the standards set forth in subsection F1 of this Section 11-606. 

 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Exterior Appearance Application Request and Exhibits (packet) 
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Aerial Map View 
Attachment 4 -  Street View  
Attachment 5 -  Plat of Survey 
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   March 8, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Canopy Sign Application for Levato Salon, in the Historic Downtown District 
 29 E. First Street    
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Levato Salon requesting approval to install a 

Code compliant canopy sign at 29 E. First Street. The subject property is a multi-tenant building with 

Cine restaurant occupying the front space. Levato Salon will occupy the rear unit, with the entrance on 

the side of the building. There is a blank canopy over the entrance leading into the side of the building, 

where the applicant is requesting to install the sign. (Attachment 1)  

Request and Analysis 

The subject property is a multi-tenant building in the B-2 Central Business District and permitted 25 

square feet (SF) of signage for each business that has a separate ground level entrance. Since the 

building has four tenant spaces, the building has a maximum sign surface area of 100 SF between the 

four tenants. Per Section 9-106(E)(11), when more than one user occupies a zoning lot, the owner of the 

lot shall be responsible for allocating permitted signage among its tenants.  

The building owner has approved Levato Salon for up to 49 SF of signage. This sign application request 

reflects a 9.75 SF Code compliant sign. It has one color for the white lettering, 12 feet from grade and is 

non-illuminated. Currently, Cine restaurant has 49 SF, and suites 201 and 203 each has 1 SF of window 

signage. 

The subject property is located in the B-2 Central Business District and borders the B-2 District to the 

north, east, south and west.  

Process 
 
Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application would require a meeting before 

the Plan Commission and does not require public notification. Per municipal code Section 14-5-1(B), the 

Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) shall review signage in the Historic District. The final decision of 

the HPC shall be advisory only. The Plan Commission maintains final authority on signage with no further 

action required by the Board of Trustees. 
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Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Street View of 29 E. First Street (facing North) 
Attachment 2 -  Sign Application for Levato Salon at 29 E. First Street (packet) 
Attachment 3 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 4 -  Birds Eye View of 29 E. First Street 
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Attachment 3: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   March 8, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Ground Sign Application for Hinsdale Public Library, attached to Local Landmark 

Memorial Hall -  20 E. Maple Street  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an application from Ms. Karen Keefe, Executive Director of the 

Hinsdale Public Library (Library) requesting approval to install a Code compliant ground sign at 20 E. 

Maple Street. The Library is attached to the Locally Landmarked Memorial Hall building at 19 E. Chicago 

Avenue, and requires a Certificate of Appropriateness for new signage. 

Request and Analysis 

Currently, the Library only has a wall sign above the front entrance. Per the applicant, the wall sign is not 

visible to patrons until they are already entering the building. The proposed location for the ground sign 

is at the corner of Washington Street and Maple Street. The  Code compliant ground sign structure is 4 

feet tall and 11 feet wide.  It features brick to match the building brick and a limestone base, sill and 

caps. The actual signage area is 10 SF and uses Times New Roman font to reflect “Hinsdale Public 

Library”.  The address “20 East Maple Street” is located underneath the signage on the limestone base. 

The ground sign will be installed 10 feet from both lot lines. The applicant proposes to use external LED 

floodlights to face and illuminate the ground sign (one on each side). 

On November 9, 2016, the applicant reviewed the request to the Historic Preservation Commission 

(HPC) as a discussion item for feedback. Per the HPC recommendations, the applicant has: reduced the 

height of the middle section of the sign structure from 3’-6” to 3’-4” to better define the columns, 

thickened the edge of the limestone column caps to prevent chipping, and spelled out “East” and 

“Street” on the sign.  

The Library is attached to the Locally Landmarked Memorial Hall building at 19 E. Chicago Avenue. In the 

Library expansion schematic design (Attachment 6) of June 8, 1987, one of the architectural design 

objectives was to carry over and match the Georgian style of the building. The subject property was 

locally landmarked in 2001. Per the approved 2001 Findings and Recommendations (Attachment 7), the 

building has significant historic value and embodies elements of design, detail, and materials that should 

be protected and preserved.  
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Process 
 
Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application would require a meeting before 
the Plan Commission and does not require public notification. The Plan Commission maintains final 
authority on signage with no further action required by the Board of Trustees. 
 
Per Section 14-5-1(A), no permits shall be issued for signage of a designated landmark without prior 
issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness.  
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 –  Cover Letter from Ms. Karen Kleckner Keefe, Library Director (dated 2/14/17) 
Attachment 2 –  Ground Sign Application  
Attachment 3 –  Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 4 –  Aerial Parcel Map of 20 E. Maple Street 
Attachment 5 –  Streetview of Washington Street and Maple Street 
Attachment 6 –  Hinsdale Public Library Expansion Schematic Design (dated 06/08/87) 
Attachment 7 –  HPC Findings and Recommendations and photos (dated 02/13/01) 
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FFLED18

JOB NAME:

DATE:

TYPE:

DESCRIPTION
Rectangular shaped LED floodlight designed to replace 70W Metal Halide.  Patent Pending
airflow technology ensures long LED and driver lifespan.  Use for building facade lighting,
sign lighting, LED landscape lighting and instant-on security lighting.

SPECIFICATIONS
NEMA Type
7H x 6V Beam Spread
Airflow
Patent pending Airflow technology heat sink
for superior cooling
LEDs
18 Watt high performance LEDs
Driver
Constant Current, Class 2, 100 - 277V, 50 -
60 Hz, 100 - 277VAC 0.4 Amps
Input Watts
22
Fixture Efficacy
73 Lumens per Watt
Surge Protection
6 KV
Ambient Temperature
Suitable for use in 40C ambient
temperatures.
Cold Weather Starting
The minimum starting temperature is
-40F/-40C.
Heatsink Housing
Die-cast aluminum housing, lens frame and
mounting arm
Mounting
Heavy-duty mounting arm with O ring seal &
stainless steel screw
Color Stability
RAB LEDs exceed industry standards for
chromatic stability.
Color Accuracy
70 CRI
Color Temperature (Nominal CCT)
5000K
Color Uniformity
RAB_•_s range of CCT (Correlated Color
Temperature) follows the guidelines of the
American National Standard for (SSL)
Products, ANSI C78.377-2008.

Reflector
Semi-specular anodized aluminum
Gaskets
High-temperature silicone gaskets
Finish
Chip and fade resistant polyester
Green Technology
Mercury and UV free
IESNA LM-79 & LM-80 Testing
RAB LED luminaires have been tested by an
independent laboratory in accordance with
IESNA LM-79 and LM-80, and have
received the Department of Energy Lighting
Facts label.
California Title 24
FFLED18 complies with California Title 24
building and electrical codes.
Warranty
RAB LED fixtures give you peace of mind
because both the fixture and light engine
components are backed by RAB's 5 Year
Warranty.  For more information,
Patents
The FFLED18 design is protected by
patents pending in the U.S., Canada, China,
Taiwan and Mexico.
UL Listing
Suitable For Wet Locations. Suitable for
mounting within 1.2M(4FT) of the ground

Color
Bronze
Weight
4.8

ORDERING INFORMATION
LED Total 

Watts
Lamp 
Type

Lamp 
Base Ballast

Starting Amps/ Operating Amps
120V 208V 240V 277V

Input 
Watts

LAMP 
ANSI

Initial 
Lumens

Lamp 
HoursLamp supplied with fixture

18 LED Heat-
sink

Constant Current 0.2 0.15 0.13 0.11 22.4 N/A 1624 50000

Factory Installed Options
Add suffix to Catalog Number

RAB Lighting, Inc. • 170 Ludlow Ave• Northvale, NJ 07647 • Tel: 888 RAB-1000 • Fax: 888 RAB-1232 • www.rabweb.com
© 2012

Note: Specifications may change without notice
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	Question 15: The school building is a more horizontally planned building and shall be visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related in its directional character.
	Question 16: NA
	Question 1B: 
	Question 2B: 
	Question 3B: 
	Question 4B: 
	Question 5B: 
	Question 6B: 
	Question 7B: 
	Question 8B: 
	Question 9B: 
	Question 10B: 
	Question 11B: 
	Question 12B: 
	Group1: Off
	Address: 
	Description: Add "Tutoring Service" and "Curriculum development, educational" sto the list of approved uses for the O-2 zone
	Question 1: This is a 2.5 acre site and our building is 15,000SF.  Much of the area surrounding the school will be open space playground and lansdcaping.
	Question 2: The school will be 100% red brick masonry with white painted wood trim and white windows, gray slate look shingles on the roof.
	Question 3: Colonial in design, the school will complement the surrounding character of the neighborhood and have strong curb appeal relative to its surroundings.
	Print: 
	Question 4: All parking will comply with Hinsdale codes.  Traffic patterns on-site will be sufficient for pick up and drop off of children.  The property will be heavily landscaped and offer ample screening to the residential neighbors to the north.
	Question 5: The building height is below the maximum height allowance requirement and will be visually compatible to the adjacent buildings.
	Question 6: Proportions of the building have been meticulously studied and are visually compatible with all adjacencies. 
	Question 7: All windows on all elevations are compatible with their facades.
	Question 8: Much of the buildings facades is a compliment of brick and window and is very much compatible to the adjacencies to which it is related.
	Question 9: The building and open spaces are visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related.
	Question 10: Yes, The relationship of entrances and other projections to sidewalks shall be visually compatible with the buildings, public ways, and places to which it is visually related
	Question 11: The Brick, white painted wood trim and windows and other textural elements of the facade shall be visually compatible with the predominant materials to be used in the buildings and structures to which it is visually related.
	Question 12: The roof will be a mansard and shall be visually compatible with the buildings to which it is visually related.
	Question 13: Yes, Building facades and appurtenances such as walls, fences, and landscape masses shall, ensure visual compatibility with the buildings, public ways, and places to which such elements are visually related.
	Question 14: The size and mass of the school building at 15,000SF will work well with the 2.5 acres and open space characteristics of the property.


